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EXPLANATORY NOTE

The sole purpose of this amended Quarterly Regor iset forth unaudited interim financial statetaefor the periods presented ¢
restated basis that present cash disposition pdsctet are set aside and designated or intendéahtb future taxdeferred exchanges
qualifying real estate investments as restrictesh cather than as cash and cash equivalents (ste IMoto the Consolidated Finan
Statements). In addition, in accordance with Statgnof Financial Accounting Standard No. 14Ac€ounting for the Impairment or Dispo
of Long-Lived Assets,” (“SFAS No. 144"the operations of any property sold during the mionths ended December 31, 2007 have
reclassified into discontinued operations. The exfegntioned financial statements should be readrnijuaction with the notes to Consolids
Financial Statements, ManagemsnbDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiord d&esults of Operations and Risk Factors incl
herein and in our 2006 Annual Report on Form 1\ permitted by Rule 125 of the Securities Exchange Act, this amendéugfiinclude:
the complete text of only those items amended. Atingly, Part |, Items 3 and 4, and Part Il, Iteinthrough 5, have been omitted from
filing.

PART | - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1.FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We refer to (1) Highwoods Properties, Inc. as thgorhpany,” (2) Highwoods Realty Limited Partnerstap the Operating
Partnership,” (3) the Company’s common stock asi@mn Stock,” (4) the Company’s preferred stock Rieferred Stock,”Y) the Operatin
Partnership’s common partnership interests as “Comiwnits,” (6) the Operating Partnership’s prefdrpartnership interests areferre
Units” and (7) inservice properties (excluding rental residentiats)rto which the Company and/or the Operating riRaghip have title at
100.0% ownership rights as the “Wholly Owned Pr&psr”

The information furnished in the accompanying Cdidated Financial Statements reflects all adjustisi¢consisting of normal recurri
accruals) that are, in our opinion, necessary fairgpresentation of the aforementioned finanstatements for the interim period.



HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Unaudited and in thousands, except share anchpee amounts)

June 30, December 31,
2007 2006
Assets: (as restated -

see Note 14)
Real estate assets, at ct

Land $ 353,09t $ 345,54¢
Buildings and tenant improvemet 2,639,08! 2,573,03:
Development in proces 137,49: 101,89¢
Land held for development 112,42; 111,51
3,242,009 3,131,99
Less-accumulated depreciation (628,501 (588,30
Net real estate assets 2,613,58 2,543,68!
Real estate and other assets, net, held fo 3,21 35,44¢
Cash and cash equivalel 2,60( 16,69(
Restricted cas 18,01¢ 2,02
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $1,094 $h@53, respectivel 23,66: 23,347
Notes receivable, net of allowance of $134 and $r&pectively 5,89: 7,871
Accrued straight-line rents receivable, net ofwalace of $393 and $301,
respectively 70,79¢ 68,36¢
Investment in unconsolidated affiliat 59,61 60,35¢
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net of acdated amortizatiol 69,76¢ 66,35
Prepaid expenses and other assets 21,15¢ 20,70¢
Total Assets $ 288830 $  2,844,85

Liabilities, Minority Interest and Stockholders' Eq uity:

Mortgages and notes payal $ 1,557,57. $ 1,465,12!

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheliitied 157,25( 156,73

Financing obligations 35,68: 35,53(
Total Liabilities 1,750,50. 1,657,391

Commitments and Contingencies (see Note

Minority interest 71,60: 79,72¢

Stockholders' Equity
Preferred Stock, $.01 par value, 50,000,000 authdrshares

8 5/8% Series A Cumulative Redeemable PreferredeSHaquidation

preference $1,000 per share), 104,945 shares issukdutstanding at

June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2 104,94! 104,94!

8% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Silayaslation

preference $25 per share), 2,100,000 and 3,7060@@s issued and

outstanding at June 30, 2007 and December 31, 28§6ectively 52,50( 92,50(
Common stock, $.01 par value, 200,000,000 authdishares

57,130,805 and 56,211,148 shares issued and oditsfeat

June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006, respec 571 562
Additional paic-in capital 1,444,47. 1,449,33
Distributions in excess of net earnir (535,069 (538,099
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (1,230) (1,515)

Total Stockholders' Equity 1,066,19 1,107,73.
Total Liabilities, Minority Interest and Stockhold&Equity $ 2,888,30. $ 2,844,85:

See accompanying notes to consolidated financigsents.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Income
(Unaudited and in thousands, except per share asjoun

Rental and other revenues

Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expen
Depreciation and amortizatic
General and administrative
Total operating expenses
Interest expenses:
Contractua

Amortization of deferred financing cos
Financing obligations

Other income:
Interest and other incon
Loss on debt extinguishments

Income before disposition of property, insurance ga, minority
interest and equity in earnings of unconsolidatedféiliates
Gains on disposition of property, r
Gain from property insurance settlem
Minority interest
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates

Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations:

Income from discontinued operations, net of miryariteresi
Gains on sales of discontinued operations, netiobrity
interest

Net income

Dividends on preferred stot
Excess of preferred stock redemption cost oveytayivalue

Net income available for common stockholders

Net income per common share - basic:

Income from continuing operatio
Income from discontinued operations

Net income
Weighted average common shares outstanding - basic

Net income per common share - diluted:

Income from continuing operatiol
Income from discontinued operations

Net income
Weighted average common shares outstanding - dilute
Dividends declared per common share

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,

2007 2006 2007 2006
$ 106,40 $ 101,01« $ 213,090 $ 200,30:
38,25 36,17: 76,53( 71,53
30,03¢ 28,11( 59,17¢ 55,24¢
10,86¢ 9,06( 21,77¢ 17,75:
79,15¢ 73,34 157,48! 144,52¢
23,09 24,23¢ 45,78¢ 48,04¢
60¢ 582 1,17¢ 1,32¢
99t 1,39¢ 1,987 2,34(
24,70 26,21¢ 48,94¢ 51,71:
2,117 1,14¢ 3,632 3,117
- (467) - (467)
2,11 67€ 3,632 2,64¢
4,66: 2,132 10,29: 6,70¢
2,341 1,00¢ 19,08« 5,31¢
- - 4,12¢ -
(397) (300) (2,982) (78€)
2,00¢ 1,92¢ 11,72 4,007
8,61 4,76¢ 42,24¢ 15,24t
58C 1,22¢ 1,24: 3,131
96 28t 18,35¢ 2,04:
67¢€ 1,50¢ 19,601 5,17¢
9,28¢ 6,27: 61,847 20,41¢
(3,846) (4,119 (7,959 (8,837)
(1,449 - (1,449 (1,809
$ 4,000 $ 2,16 $ 52,44 $ 9,77¢
$ 0.0¢ $ 0.01 $ 0.5¢ $ 0.0¢
0.01 0.0¢ 0.3% 0.1C
$ 0.07 $ 0.04 $ 09 $ 0.1¢
56,46( 53,87¢ 56,21¢ 53,87
$ 0.0¢ $ 0.01 $ 0.5¢ $ 0.0¢
0.01 0.0¢ 0.34 0.0¢
$ 0.07 $ 0.04 $ 09z $ 0.1¢
61,56 60,38 61,70¢ 60,47(
$ 0.42¢ $ 0.42F $ 0.85( $ 0.85(

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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Balance at December 31, 2006

Cumulative effect adjustment
resulting from the adoption of
FASB Interpretation No. 4

Issuance of Common Sto

Redemption of Common Units
for Common Stocl

Common Stock dividenc
Preferred Stock dividenc

Adjustment to minority interest
of unitholders in the
Operating Partnersh

Redemption of Preferred Sto
Issuance of restricted stock, 1

Amortization of restricted stock
and stock option

Other comprehensive incor
Net income

Balance at June 30, 2007

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’ Equity
For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2007
(Unaudited and in thousands, except share amounts)

Accumulated

Number of Additional Other Distributions
Common Common Series A Series B Paid-In Compre- in Excess of
Shares Stock Preferred Preferred Capital hensive Loss Net Earnings Total
56,211,14 $ 562 $ 104,94 $ 92,50( $ 1,449,33 $ (1,515 % (538,099 $ 1,107,73
- - - - - - (1,429 (1,429
662,20 7 - - 6,207 - - 6,214
52,65( - - - 2,05z - - 2,05z
- - - - - - (47,987 (47,98))
- - - - - - (7,959) (7,959
- - - - (17,186 - - (17,186
- - - (40,000 1,44 - (1,447 (40,000
204,80( - - - - - - -
- 2 - - 2,621 - - 2,62¢
- - - - - 28t - 28t
- - - - - - 61,84 61,847
57,130,80 $ 571 % 104,94 $ 52,50( $ 1,444,47. $ (1,23G$ (535,064 $ 1,066,191

See accompanying notes to consolidated financisents.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Six Months Ended June 30,
2007 2006

(as restated -
see Note 14)

Operating activities:

Net income $ 61,847 $ 20,41¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizatic 60,29: 58,37¢
Amortization of lease incentive 50C 45¢
Amortization of restricted stock and stock opti 2,62 1,88(
Amortization of deferred financing cos 1,17¢ 1,32¢
Amortization of accumulated other comprehensive 28t 354
Loss on debt extinguishmer - 467
Gains on disposition of proper (38,930 (7,525)
Gain from property insurance settlem (4,12¢) -
Minority interest 4,56t 1,26:
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilia (11,729 (4,007)
Change in financing obligatior 152 70C
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ifiés 3,841 3,97¢
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl (631) 1,768
Prepaid expenses and other as (1,477) (254)
Accrued straigl-line rents receivabl (2,467) (4,185)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiiedil 937 (1,979
Net cash provided by operating activities 76,87¢ 73,04t
Investing activities:
Additions to real estate assets and deferred lga&sists (136,92) (79,009
Proceeds from disposition of real estate as 73,90: 160,15:
Proceeds from property insurance settlen 4,94( -
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated afitkes 13,39¢ 1,73¢
Net repayments in notes receiva 2,551 617
Contributions to unconsolidated affiliat (4,71¢) (100)
Cash assumed upon consolidation of unconsoliddfiidte - 64t
Changes in restricted cash and other investingiaes (15,65Y 12,04(
Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities (62,507) 96,08¢
Financing activities:
Distributions paid on Common Stock and Common L (51,700 (50,47%
Redemption of Preferred Sto (40,000 (50,000
Dividends paid on Preferred Sto (7,959 (8,837
Distributions to minority partner in consolidatefila@te 1,775 (269)
Net proceeds from the sale of Common St 6,21¢ 13¢
Repurchase of Common Un (27,407 (7,197
Borrowings on revolving credit facilit 232,50( 461,00(
Repayments of revolving credit facili (458,00() (353,500
Borrowings on mortgages and notes pay: 402,58! -
Repayments of mortgages and notes pay (84,679 (153,01
Contributions from minority interest partn 5,06¢ -
Additions to deferred financing costs (3,319 (3,265)
Net cash used in financing activities (28,467 (165,419
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equis. $ (14,090 $ 3,71¢
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the gberio 16,69( 1,212
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period $ 2,60 $ 4,92¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financigsents.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - Continued
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Six Months Ended

June 30,
2007 2006
Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capital{@aludes cash distributions to
owners of sold properties accounted for as finagef $1,175 and $976 for
2007 and 2006, respective $ 41,06: $ 48,24"

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing anthincing activities:

The following table summarizes the net asset atpris and dispositions subject to mortgage notegaple and other nocast
transactions:

Six Months Ended

June 30,
2007 2006

Assets:
Net real estate asst $ - $ 44,61
Restricted cas - (1,865)
Accounts receivabl - 10z
Accrued straigl-line rents receivabl - 962
Investments in unconsolidated affilial - (1,93¢)
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net - 287

$ - $ 42,16(
Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payal $ - $ 40,73¢
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiied - (1,652
Financing obligation - 1,14¢

$ - $ 40,23:
Minority Interest and Stockholders’ Equity $ - $ 1,92¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.



HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2007
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre data)
(Unaudited)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESSAND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of Business

Highwoods Properties, Inc., together with its cdidsted subsidiaries (the "Company"), is a fullyeigrated, self-administered and self-
managed equity real estate investment trust ("REHA&t operates in the southeastern and midwesteited States. The Company cond
virtually all of its activities through HighwoodseRlty Limited Partnership (the “Operating Partngrgh At June 30, 2007, the Company an
the Operating Partnership wholly owned: 320sémvice office, industrial and retail propertie€91rental residential units; 693 acres
undeveloped land suitable for future developmehtwlich 553 acres are considered core holdings; amcdditional 18 properties un
development.

At June 30, 2007, the Company owned all of thegoretl partnership interests (“Preferred Unieig 93.3% of the common partner:
interests ("Common Units") in the Operating Parshgy. Limited partners (including certain officeasd directors of the Company) own
remaining Common Units. Generally, the Operatingrieaship is required to redeem each Common Unhetequest of the holder thereof
cash equal to the value of one share of the Conmpadymmon Stock, $.01 par value (the “Common Sthckésed on the average of
market price for the 10 trading days immediatelgceding the notice date of such redemption, pravitiat the Company at its option n
elect to acquire any such Common Units presentedeftemption for cash or one share of Common Stdbk. Common Units owned by 1
Company are not redeemable. During the six montdee June 30, 2007, the Company redeemed 618,25MGo Units for $27.4 million |
cash and redeemed 52,650 Common Units for a likeben of shares of Common Stock, which increasedo#ireentage of Common Ur
owned by the Company from 92.2% at December 316 20®3.3% at June 30, 2007. Preferred Units inQperating Partnership were iss
to the Company in connection with the Company’dd?red Stock offerings in 1997 and 1998 (the “Pmefg Stock”).The net proceeds rais
from each of the Preferred Stock issuances wereibated by the Company to the Operating Partnprghiexchange for the Preferred Ur
The terms of each series of Preferred Units pataketerms of the respective Preferred Stock abvidends, liquidation and redemption rigl

Basis of Presentation

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Compaa prepared in accordance with U.S. Generallgefpted Accounting Principl
(“GAAP”). Certain amounts in the December 31, 2006 ConselilBalance Sheet have been reclassified to cortfmthe current presentatic
As more fully described in Note 9, as required B3AS No. 144, the Consolidated Balance Sheet at kee31, 2006 was revised fr
previously reported amounts to reflect in real testand other assets held for sale those propentéd for sale at June 30, 2007.
Consolidated Statements of Income for the threesaanonths ended June 30, 2006 were also reviged previously reported amounts
reflect in discontinued operations the operatidrsny property sold in all of 2007.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per siire data)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESSAND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

The Consolidated Financial Statements include ther&ing Partnership, wholly owned subsidiaries #hade subsidiaries in which -
Company owns a majority voting interest with thdigbto control operations of the subsidiaries amdere no substantive participating ric
or substantive kick out rights have been grantethéaminority interest holders. In accordance Viitherging Issues Task Force (“EITHSsue
No. 045, “Determining Whether a General Partner or the GéfRadners as a Group, Controls a Limited Partrigrsh Similar Entity Whe
the Limited Partners Have Certain Rightdye Company consolidates partnerships, joint vestand limited liability companies when
Company controls the major operating and finanp@icies of the entity through majority ownershipio its capacity as general partne
managing member. In addition, the Company const#dthose entities, if any, where the Company ésraal to be the primary beneficiary
variable interest entity (as defined by Financialcdunting Standards Board (“FASBThterpretation No. 46 (revised December 2(
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” (“FIBB(R)")). All significant intercompany transact®and accounts have been eliminated.

The accompanying unaudited financial informationthie opinion of management, contains all adjustsnéncluding normal recurrir
accruals) necessary for a fair presentation of Goenpany$ financial position, results of operations andhcflews. The Company h
condensed or omitted certain notes and other irdtiom from the interim financial statements presdrin this Quarterly Report on Form €0-
These financial statements should be read in catipmwith the Company’s 2006 Annual Report on FAi@rK.

The preparation of financial statements in accocdamith GAAP requires management to make estimatdsassumptions that affect
amounts reported in the financial statements andrapanying notes. Actual results could differ frdmse estimates.

Income Taxes

The Company has elected and expects to contingealify as a REIT under Sections 856 through 86€hefinternal Revenue Code
1986, as amended (the “CodeA.corporate REIT is a legal entity that holds reatate assets and, through the payment of divida
stockholders, is generally permitted to reduce \ayich the payment of federal and state income taatethe corporate level. To maint
qualification as a REIT, the Company is requiredliistribute to its stockholders at least 90.0%tsfannual REIT taxable income, excluc
capital gains. Aggregate dividends paid on Prefe8tock exceeded REIT taxable income (excludingtaagains) in 2006, which resulted
no required dividend on Common Stock in 2006 fol'R&ualification purposes. Continued qualificatia® a REIT depends on the Company’
ability to satisfy the dividend distribution testgpck ownership requirements and various othelifoqpadion tests prescribed in the Code.
Company conducts certain business activities thraugaxable REIT subsidiary, as permitted underGbde. The taxable REIT subsidiar
subject to federal and state income taxes on itdaxable income. The Company records provisiomsrfoome taxes, to the extent requ
under SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxe$SKAS No. 109”),based on its income recognized for financial stetenpurpose
including the effects of temporary differences tedw such income and the amount recognized for tegopes. Additionally, beginnil
January 1, 2007, the Company began to recognizemeasure the effects of uncertain tax positioneeu\SB Interpretation No. 48 EtN
48", “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes) interpretation of SFAS No. 1095ke Impact of Newly Adopted and Issued Accout
Standards below and Note 12 for discussion of tfeeteof FIN 48 on the Company’s accounting foranme taxes.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per siire data)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESSAND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Minority Interest

Minority interest in the accompanying Consolidatédancial Statements relates primarily to the owhigr by various individuals a
entities other than the Company of Common Unitshim Operating Partnership. In addition, minoritjenest is also recorded for the 50
interest in a consolidated affiliate, Highwoods-kirAssociates, LLC (“Markel”)the equity interest owned by a third party in asmidate:
venture formed during 2006 with Real Estate ExcleaBgrvices (“REES”)and the 7% equity interest owned by a third pantyPlazi
Residential LLC, a consolidated joint venture fodre February 2007 related to a residential conddumi project, as described below. A:
June 30, 2007, minority interest in the Operatirgtfership consisted of approximately 4.1 millioan@non Units, which had an aggre¢
market value of $152.3 million based on the $380share closing price of the Common Stock asiofi glate. Minority interest in the |
income of the Operating Partnership is compute@gylying the weighted average percentage of Comunits not owned by the Compe
during the period (as a percent of the total nundfesutstanding Common Units) to the Operating farthips net income after deducti
distributions on Preferred Units. The result is #meount of minority interest expense (or incomeprded for the period. In addition, whe
minority unitholder redeems a Common Unit for arshaf Common Stock or cash, the minority interesieduced and the Compasyhare i
the Operating Partnership is increased. At the @nelach reporting period, the Company determinesatimount that represents the minc
unitholders’share of the net assets (at book value) of the &ipgrPartnership and compares this amount to therity interest balance tt
resulted from transactions during the period inir@vminority interest. The Company adjusts the mitganterest liability to the comput
share of net assets with an offsetting adjustneetite Company’s paid in capital.

The organizational documents of Markel requireghtity to be liquidated through the sale of itseéssipon reaching December 31, 2
As controlling partner, the Company has an oblayato cause this propertywning entity to distribute proceeds of liquidatitmthe minorit
interest partner in these partially owned propsrtiBly if the net proceeds received by the entiynfthe sale of its assets warrant a distribi
as determined by the agreement. In accordancethétldisclosure provisions of SFAS No. 158¢ctounting for Certain Financial Instrume
with Characteristics of both Liabilities and EquitySFAS No. 150”),the Company estimates the value of minority intedésgtributions woul
have been approximately $17.2 million had the eritéen liquidated as of June 30, 2007. This eséichaéttlement value is based on estin
third party consideration realizable by the entipon a hypothetical disposition of the propertied & net of all other assets and liabilities.
actual amount of any distributions to the minofitterest holder in this entity is difficult to prietl due to many factors, including the inhe
uncertainty of real estate sales. If the engityhderlying assets are worth less than the unidgrliabilities on the date of such liquidationg
Company would have no obligation to remit any cdesition to the minority interest holder.

In the first quarter of 2007, the Compasiytaxable REIT subsidiary formed Plaza ResidentlaC with Dominion Partners LL
(“Dominion”). Plaza Residential was formed to develop and sé@lr&3idential condominiums to be constructed atmveffice tower bein
developed by the Company in Raleigh, NC. Dominias b 7% equity interest in the joint venture, wiékform development services for
joint venture for a market development fee and guiges 40.0% of the construction financing. Donminidgll also receive 35.0% of the |
profits from the joint venture once the partnersehaeceived distributions equal to their equitysplu 12.0% return on their equity. ~
Company is consolidating this majority owned jorenture and intecompany transactions have been eliminated in thes@mwlated Financi
Statements. As of August 1, 2007, binding sale remté had been executed for 133 of the resideatiatiominiums. At June 30, 2007, $
million of deposits related to 74 contracts (rrefiindable unless the Company defaults in its akilig to deliver the units) had been rece
and are reflected in restricted cash with a cooedimg amount in other liabilities. The Companylvaitcount for the sale of the resider
condominiums in accordance with SFAS No. 66, “Agtting for Sales of Real Estate” (“SFAS No. 6@hHd will record the sales when
related closings take place, which are expectedtd¢ar in late 2008 and early 2009.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per siire data)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESSAND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Following is minority interest as reflected in tBempany’s Consolidated Statements of Income and@iolated Balance Sheets:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006
Amount shown as minority interest in continuing Et®ns(1) $ (397) $ (300) $ (2,987 $ (78¢€)
Amount related to income from discontinued operst (42 (120 (95) (313
Amount related to gains on sales of discontinuestajons (7) (28) (1,48%) (164)
Total minority interest in net income $ (44€) $ (448 $ (4,565 $ (1,263

(1) Minority interest related to the consolidated éesitother than the Operating Partnership amoumtek02 million for each of the thr
months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 and $0.3 mitiveach of the six months ended June 30, 20672606.

June 30, December 31,
2007 2006
Minority interest in the Operating Partnership $ 65,08: $ 76,84¢
Minority interest in Marke 3,40¢ 2,11¢
Minority interest in REES 2,89¢ 76C
Minority interest in Plaza Residential 214 R
Total minority interest $ 71,60: $ 79,72¢

Impact of Newly Adopted and Issued Accounting Stanards
In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, which the gamy adopted as of January 1, 2007. See Note I@rtber discussion.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 15dir “Falue Measurements” (“SFAS No. 1573FAS No. 157 defines fair vall
establishes a framework for measuring fair valug expands disclosures concerning fair value measemes. SFAS No. 157 becomes effec
for the Company on January 1, 2008. The Comparyrigently evaluating the impact SFAS No. 157 wilve on its financial condition a
results of operations.

In November 2006, the FASB ratified EITF Issue R6-8 (“EITF No. 06-8"), “Applicability of the Assasent of a Buyes Continuini
Investment under FASB Statement No. 66 for SalgSafdominiums.” EITF No. 08-provided additional guidance on whether the selle
condominium unit is required to evaluate the buyedntinuing investment under SFAS No. 66 in otdeecognize profit from the sale un
the percentage of completion method. The EITF aatedl that both the buysrinitial and continuing investment must meet thieeda in
SFAS No. 66 in order for condominium sale profiisbe recognized under the percentage of completietihod. Sales of condominiums
meeting the continuing investment test must be @wuenl for under the deposit method. EITF No80& effective January 1, 2008. ~
Company does not expect that the adoption of EI'DF06-8 will have a material impact on the Companfinancial position or results
operations.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per siire data)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

In December 2006, the FASB issued FSP EITF 00-19A2¢ounting for Registration Payment Arrangeménts, specify that th
contingent obligation to make future payments dreovise transfer consideration under a registrapagment arrangement should
separately recognized and measured in accordanite RSB Statement No. 5, “Accounting for Contingiessc’ The FSP is effecti
immediately for registration payment arrangements the financial instruments subject to those geaments that are entered into or mod
subsequent to the issuance date of this FSP aedtigé for fiscal years beginning after December2l®6 and interim periods within the
fiscal years for arrangements that were enterexdgrior to the issuance of this FSP. The Compsagloption of this FSP as of January 1, .
had no impact on the Company’s financial condittomesults of operations.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159.e“Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Finantiabilities” (“SFAS No
1597), which permits all entities to choose to measurgildk items at fair value at specified electionedatSFAS No. 159 becomes effective
the Company on January 1, 2008. The Company igetlyrevaluating the impact SFAS No. 159 will haweits financial condition and rest
of operations.

2. INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED AND OTHER AFFILIATES

The Company has various joint ventures with uneglahvestors and has retained equity interestsngrigom 12.5% to 50.0% in the
joint ventures. The Company accounts for its unobdated joint ventures using the equity methocaofounting. As a result, the assets
liabilities of these joint ventures for which th@@pany uses the equity method of accounting aréncbided on the Compars/’consolidate
balance sheet.

During the third quarter of 2006, three of the Camgs joint ventures made distributions aggregating.@Xillion as a result of
refinancing of debt related to various propertiefdhby the joint ventures. The Company receive®%@0of such distributions. As a resuli
these distributions, the Company’s investment agtau these joint ventures became negative. The delt is norrecourse; however, t
Company and its partner have guaranteed otheratebhave contractual obligations to support thetjeentures, which are included in
Guarantees and Other Obligations table in NoteTterefore, in accordance with SOP 78-Bctounting for Investments in Real Es
Ventures,”the Company recorded the distributions as a reoluatf the investment account and included the tieguhegative investme
balances of $6.9 million in accounts payable, aatrexpenses and other liabilities in the Consaidi@alance Sheet at June 30, 2007.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per siire data)

2. INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED AND OTHER AFFILIATES - Continued

The Company has had a number of consolidated yeintures. SFHIW Harborview Plaza, LP is accounted for as arfoiag arrangeme
pursuant to SFAS No. 66, as described in NotetBeédConsolidated Financial Statements in the Coyip&906 Annual Report on Form 1Q-
MG-HIW, LLC was accounted for as a financing arrangenpeirsuant to SFAS No. 66 as described in Note ¢ Consolidated Financ
Statements in the Company’s 2006 Annual Report@mFL0-K; The Vinings at University Center, LLC wesnsolidated pursuant to FIN 46
(R) until late 2006 upon the sale of the ventsirassets and distribution of its net cash asseits fpartners; and Markel, REES and P
Residential, which are discussed in Note 1, aré eansolidated.

Investments in unconsolidated affiliates as of J8Me2007 and combined summarized income statemfemtsthe Companyg
unconsolidated joint ventures for the six monthdeghJune 30, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:

Total Rentable

. Square Feet Ownership
Joint Venture Location of Properties (000) Interest

Board of Trade Investment Compa Kansas City, MC 16€ 49.0(%
Dallas County Partners I, L Des Moines, IA 641 50.0(%
Dallas County Partners Il, L Des Moines, IA 278 50.0(%
Dallas County Partners lll, L Des Moines, IA 7 50.0(%
Fountain Thret Des Moines, 1A 78E 50.0(%
RRHWoods, LL( Des Moines, IA 80C() 50.0(%
Kessinger/Hunter, LL( Kansas City, MC —@) 26.5(%
4600 Madison Associates, LL Kansas City, MC 262 12.5(%
Plaza Colonnade, LL! Kansas City, MC 29C 50.0(%
Highwoods DLF 98/29, LP Atlanta, GA; Charlotte, NC;

Greensboro, NC; Raleigh, NC;

Orlando, FL; Baltimore, ML 1,08¢ 22.81 %
Highwoods DLF 97/26 DLF 99/32, LP Atlanta, GA; Greensboro, NC;

Orlando, FL 822 42.9%
Highwoods KC Glenridge Office, L Atlanta, GA 18t 40.0(%
Highwoods KC Glenridge Land, L Atlanta, GA — 40.0(%
HIW-KC Orlando LLC Orlando, FL 1,274 40.0(%
Concourse Center Associates, L Greenshoro, N( 11¢ 50.00%
Weston Lakeside, LLC Raleigh, NC —@3) 50.0(%
Total 6,712(4)

(1) Includes a 31,000 square foot office building cotiseunder development and 418 rental residentiébu

(2) This joint venture provides property managemerdsiley and brokerage services and provides certaistrauctionrelated services

certain Wholly Owned Properties; therefore, noabhd square feet is provide

(3) This joint venture constructed 332 rental residgnthits which were sold in February 2007 as desdrbelow

(4) Total does not include -service operating properties held by consolidadétt yentures totaling 618,000 square fi
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per siire data)

2. INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED AND OTHER AFFILIATES - Continued

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006
Income Statements:
Revenues $ 35,14( $ 33,78 $ 73,157 $ 67,80:
Expenses:
Operating expenst 14,99: 14,43 30,15¢ 28,67
Depreciation and amortizatic 7,52¢ 6,99 14,78! 13,99(
Interest expense and loan cost amortization 8,35¢ 8,401 16,99( 16,72¢
Total expenses 30,87¢ 29,82t 61,92% 59,38¢
Income before disposition of property 4,261 3,95¢ 11,23( 8,41¢
Gains on disposition of property - - 20,62! -
Net income $ 4261 $ 3,95¢ $ 31,851 $ 8,41¢
The Company'’s share of:
Net income) $ 2,006 $ 1,922 $ 11,72: $ 4,007
Depreciation and amortization (real estate related) $ 287¢ $ 2,67¢ $ 574, $ 5,35¢
Interest expense and loan cost amortization $ 3,55¢ $ 352: $ 7,21¢ $ 7,00:
Gains on disposition of property $ - $ -3 7.15¢ $ -

(1) The Company’s share of net income differs fromwitighted average ownership percentage in the j@ntures’net income due to tl
Compan’s purchase accounting and other related adjustr

On September 27, 2004, the Company and an affibat€rosland, Inc. (“Crosland”jormed Weston Lakeside, LLC, in which
Company has a 50.0% ownership interest. On Jun2@®%, the Company contributed 22.4 acres of larshagreed upon value of $3.9 mill
to this joint venture, and Crosland contributed ragpmately $2.0 million in cash. Immediately thefteg the joint venture distribut
approximately $1.9 million to the Company and thmrpany recorded a gain of $0.5 million. Croslandhagged and operated this joint vent
which constructed approximately 332 rental residéninits in three buildings at a total cost of eppmately $33.7 million. Crosland recei
3.25% of all project costs other than land as &ligpment fee and 3.5% of the gross revenue ofdiiné yenture in management fees. The
venture financed the development with a $28.4 arillconstruction loan guaranteed by Crosland. Thapgamy provided certain developm
services for the project and received a fee equal@% of all project costs excluding land. The @amy accounted for this joint venture us
the equity method of accounting. On February 2B,72@he joint venture sold the 332 rental residénthits to a third party for gross proce
of $45.0 million. Mortgage debt in the amount of7f$2million was paid off and various developmerated costs were paid. The joint ven
recorded a gain of $11.3 million in the first qeardf 2007 related to this sale and the Compangrdec! $5.0 million as its proportionate st
through equity in earnings of unconsolidated affds. The Company’s share of the gain was less50&96 due to Croslansl’preferred retul
as the developer. The Company received a net ldisioh of $6.1 million and may receive a furtheradimand final distribution. As «
August 1, 2007, the joint venture is dormant pegdire final distribution to the partners.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per siire data)

2. INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED AND OTHER AFFILIATES - Continued

The Company has a 22.81% interest in a joint ven{UDLF 17) with Schweiz-DeutschlantdSA Dreilander Beteiligung Objekt DI
98/29-Walker Fink-KG ("DLF"). The Company is theoperty manager and leasing agent of DL§& properties and receives custon
management and leasing fees. On March 12, 2007,I1Bbk five properties to a third party for grggeceeds of $34.2 million and recorde
gain of $9.3 million related to this sale. The Ca@myp recorded $2.1 million as its proportionate stwrthis gain through equity in earning:
unconsolidated affiliates. On May 21, 2007, DLFchaired Eola Park Centre, a 167,000 square fodteoffuilding in Orlando, Florida, f
$39.3 million. In June 2007, the joint venture oftal a $27.7 million loan secured by Eola Park @enSimultaneously with DLF ¢’
acquisition of Eola Park Centre, the Company sé¢pbracquired an adjacent parcel of developmerd fan $2.0 million on a whollyewnec
basis.

For additional information regarding the Companydther investments in unconsolidated and otheliadés, see Note 2 to t
Consolidated Financial Statements in the Compa2@36 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

3. FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

For information regarding sale transactions thatehlbeen accounted for as financing arrangementsrymatagraphs 25 through 2¢€
SFAS No. 66, see Note 5 herein and Note 3 to thes@ilated Financial Statements in the Companyd$28nnual Report on Form 10-K.

4. INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
Dispositions

Gains, losses and impairments on disposition obgnties, net, from dispositions not classified ms@htinued operations, consisted of
following:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006
Gains on disposition of land $ 96¢< $ - $ 16,80¢ $ 3,04(
Impairments on lan - (74) - (74)
Gains on disposition of depreciable properties 1,372 1,08 2,28( 2,352
Total $ 2341 $ 1,00¢ $ 19,08 $ 5,31¢

The above gains on land and depreciable properiidade deferred gain recognition from prior sales and stijients to prior sa
transactions.

Gains on sales of discontinued operations, netinbrity interest, consisted of the following:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006
Gains on disposition of depreciable properties $ 10z $ 31 $ 19,84¢ $ 2,20
Allocable minority interest (7) (28) (1,48 (164)
Total $ 9% $ 28t % 18,35¢ $ 2,04:

See Note 9 for information on discontinued operatiand impairment of long-lived assets.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per siire data)

4. INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES - Continued
Development

The Company currently has under development 18effind industrial properties aggregating 2.75 amlsquare feet and 139 feale
residential units. The aggregate cost of these gotigs is currently expected to total approximat®#62 million when fully leased a
completed, of which $235 million was incurred aslahe 30, 2007. The weighted averagelpasing of such development projects is 72
June 30, 2007. Seven of these properties aggregat?d million square feet and $110 million totaléstment have been completed
transferred to completed real estate assets aiugtimes prior to June 30, 2007; these seven piepdave not yet reached their proje
stabilized occupancy. The remaining developmenpgnties are still under construction and are inetuéh Development in Process in
Consolidated Balance Sheet.

In addition to the development projects discussedve, during the six months ended June 30, 2003, 1@00% leased build-tsuit
properties were completed and placed in service.tdtal investment of these two properties aggezbapproximately $30 million.

5. MORTGAGES, NOTES PAYABLE AND FINANCING OBLIGATIONS

The Company’s consolidated mortgages and notesfmgansisted of the following at June 30, 2007 Bedember 31, 2006:

June 30, December 31,
2007 2006
Secured mortgage loans $ 660,75! $ 741,62
Unsecured loans 896,81¢ 723,50(
Total $ 155757 $ 1,465,12!

As of June 30, 2007, the Compasyutstanding mortgages and notes payable wergesetly real estate assets with an aggr
undepreciated book value of approximately $1.0duill

The Companys $450.0 million unsecured revolving credit fagilis initially scheduled to mature on May 1, 208&suming no defat
exists, the Company has an option to extend theintatdate by one additional year and, at any tipner to May 1, 2008, may requ
increases in the borrowing availability under thedit facility by up to an additional $50 millioithe interest rate is LIBOR plus 80 basis pc¢
and the annual base facility fee is 20 basis poirtie revolving credit facility had $308.8 milliari availability as of August 1, 2007.

The Company’s revolving credit facility and the émdure that governs the Operating Partnershipitstanding notes require it to cormn
with customary operating covenants and varioushfired and operating ratios. The Company and the&iog Partnership are each currentl
compliance with all such requirements.

On March 22, 2007, the Operating Partnership is§4€® million aggregate principal amount of 5.85%té¢ due March 15, 2017, ne
original issue discount of $1.2 million. The notesre issued under the indenture, dated as of Demeinti996, among the Operal
Partnership, the Company and U.S. Bank Nationabéiation (as successor in interest to Wachovia BahR.), the trustee, and pursuan
resolutions of the Board of Directors of the Compand an officerstertificate dated as of March 22, 2007 establistimgterms of the note
The Company used the net proceeds from the issuzfnite notes to repay borrowings outstanding uratetinsecured norevolving credi
facility that was obtained on January 31, 2007 ¢lvhwas subsequently terminated) and under theviegptredit facility.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per siire data)

5. MORTGAGES, NOTES PAYABLE AND FINANCING OBLIGATIONS - Continued

On June 5, 2007, two thrgear secured construction loans totaling $24.7ionilwith interest at 175 basis points over LIBORre
obtained by REES, a consolidated joint venture [$&® 1). As of June 30, 2007, $1.0 million wasrbaed under these loans and is inclt
in mortgages and notes payable.

Financing Obligations

The Company'’s financing obligations consisted effibllowing at June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006:

June 30, December 31,
2007 2006
SF-HIW Harborview, LP financing obligatiam) $ 16,29. $ 16,15’
Tax increment financing obligatic2) 18,30¢ 18,30¢
Capitalized ground lease obligati@n 1,08¢ 1,06¢
Total $ 35,68: $ 35,53(

(1) See Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statemantise Company’s 2006 Annual Report on FormKl@r further discussion of tr
financing obligation

(2) In connection with tax increment financing for ctiostion of a public garage related to an officélding constructed by the Company
2000, the Company is obligated to pay fixed speagdessments over a 26ar period. The net present value of these asseds
discounted at 6.93% at the inception of the ohligatwhich represents the interest rate on the wyidg bond financing, is shown a:
financing obligation in the Consolidated Balancee&h The Company also receives special tax revesmugproperty tax rebates recor
in interest and other income, which are intendeti niot guaranteed, to provide funds to pay theiapassessment

(3) Represents a capitalized lease obligation to thsoleof land on which the Company is constructingea building. The Company
obligated to make fixed payments to the lessorutinoOctober 2022 and the lease provides for fixékpurchase options in the ninth
tenth years of the lease. The Company intendsédcciese the purchase option in order to preventcam@mic penalty related to convey
the building to the lessor at the expiration of kb&se. The net present value of the fixed reraghpents and purchase option througt
ninth year was calculated using a discount raté.b%. The assets and liabilities under the capet@de are recorded at the lower of
present value of minimum lease payments or thevidire. The liability accretes each month for tifeecence between the interest rate
the financing obligation and the fixed paymentse Hacretion will continue until the liability eqeathe purchase option of the land in
ninth year of the leas

6. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Compensation Programs

During the six months ended June 30, 2007 and 28@6Company recognized approximately $2.7 milko $2.0 million, respective
of stock-based compensation expense. As of Jun20BJ, there was $13.3 million of total unrecogdiztockbased compensation co
which will be recognized over a weighted averageaiaing contractual term of 2.2 years.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per siire data)

6. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS - Continued

The following table summarizes activity in the sionths ended June 30, 2007 for all time-basedctdrstock grants:

Weighted

Average

Number of Grant Date

Shares Fair Value
Nonvested shares outstanding at December 31, 255,12( $ 27.12
Awarded and issug(1) 198,91¢ 40.97
Vested(2) (42,68%) 27.3¢
Forfeited (25,86() 27.0¢
Surrendered for payment of withholding taxes upesting(2) (31,009 27.2¢
Nonvested shares outstanding at June 30, 354,48 $ 34.8¢

(1) The grant date fair value of timEased restricted shares issued during the six rmartled June 30, 2007 and 2006 was $8.1 millio
$2.3 million, respectively

(2) The vesting date fair value of tintesed restricted shares that vested during theeiths ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 was $3.2m
and $1.9 million, respectivel

For additional information regarding the Compangbmpensation programs, see Note 6 to the Coasetid=inancial Statements in
Company’s 2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Deferred Compensation

The Company has a deferred compensation plan pursuavhich each executive officer and director etact to defer a portion of bz
salary and/or annual incentive payment (or diretgées) for investment in various unrelated mutwedds, which aggregated $7.0 millior
June 30, 2007 and are included in prepaid experggsther assets. Such deferred compensation énseg in the period earned by the offi
and directors. Deferred amounts ultimately payablthe officers and directors are based on theevafuthe related mutual fund investme
(recorded in prepaid expenses and other assetsprdingly, changes in the value of the marketablgual fund investments are recorde
other income and the corresponding offsetting charnig the deferred compensation liability are rdedrin general and administration expe
As a result, there is no effect on the Companyét income subsequent to the time the compensitideferred and fully funded. Prior
January 1, 2006, executive officers and directtss eould elect to defer cash compensation forstment in units of phantom common st
of the Company, which are not recorded as assetseirCompanys financial statements. At the end of each calendarter, any executi
officer and director who deferred compensation phantom stock was credited with units of phantémelsat a 15.0% discount. Dividends
the phantom units are assumed to be issued ini@uitunits of phantom stock at a 15.0% discounanl officer that deferred compensa
under this plan leaves the Compangmploy voluntarily or for cause within two yeafser the end of the year in which such officeredlet
compensation for units of phantom stock, at a mimmthe 15.0% discount and any deemed dividendfodrdted. Over the twgear vestin
period, the Company records additional compensatipense equal to the 15.0% discount, the accrivétbdds and any changes in the me
value of Common Stock from the date of the defeffal the six months ended June 30, 2007, thetedfetbe reduction in the trading value
Common Stock as reflected on the NYSE offset thmerge related to the discount and accrued divideedslting in no net expense for
Company. These expenses aggregated $1.2 milliothéosix months ended June 30, 2006. Cash payrfremisthe plan for the six mont
ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 were $0.3 million&hd million, respectively. Transfers made from gfentom stock investment to ot
investments in the deferred compensation planhierstx months ended June 30, 2007 were $1.5 milAdddune 30, 2007, the total liability -
deferred compensation aggregated $9.1 million amddorded in accounts payable, accrued expendasifaer liabilities.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per siire data)

6. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS - Continued
401(k) Savings Plan

The Company has a 401(k) savings plan coveringtantially all employees who meet certain age angleyment criteria. The Compa
contributes amounts for each participant at a 0&t5% of the employee’s contribution (up to 6%eaich employes’ salary). During the <
months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, the Compantyibzded $0.7 million and $0.6 million, respectiyeto the 401(k) savings ple
Administrative expenses of the plan are paid byGbepany.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company has an Employee Stock Purchase Plall factive employees under which employees cact édecontribute up to 25.0
of their base and annual incentive compensationtiferpurchase of Common Stock. At the end of eacbemonth offering period, tt
contributions in each participant's account balamdéch includes accrued dividends, are appliedaguire shares of Common Stock at a
that is calculated at 85.0% of the lower of therage closing price on the New York Stock Exchang¢he five consecutive days precedinc
first day of the quarter or the five days precedimglast day of the quarter. The Operating Pastriprissues one Common Unit to the Comj
in exchange for the price paid for each share oh@on Stock. In the six months ended June 30, 2@7Company issued 10,432 share
Common Stock under the Employee Stock Purchase Plam discount on newly issued shares is expengeithdh Company as additiol
compensation and aggregated $0.06 million in tkenginths ended June 30, 2007.

7. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss (“AOCIa) June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006 was $1.Boménd $1.5 millior
respectively, and consisted of deferred gains asskls from past cash flow hedging instruments waiehbeing recognized as interest exp
over the terms of the related debt (see Note 8.bmpany expects that the portion of the cumwddtgs recorded in AOCL at June 30, 2
associated with these derivative instruments, whitthbe recognized as interest expense withinrteet 12 months, will be approximately $
million.

8. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Other comprehensive income represents net income the changes in certain amounts deferred in adeded other comprehens

income/(loss) related to hedging activities noteefd in the Consolidated Statements of Income démponents of other comprehen
income are as follows:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006
Net income $ 9,28¢ $ 6,27 $ 61,847 $ 20,41¢
Other comprehensive inconr
Amortization of hedging gains and losses includedther
comprehensive incon 145 177 28t 354
Total other comprehensive income 14z 177 28E 354
Total comprehensive income $ 9,43: $ 6,45( $ 62,13: $ 20,77
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
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9. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND THE IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

As part of its business strategy, the Company fsilin time to time selectively dispose of noore properties in order to use the
proceeds for investments, for repayment of debfanettirement of Preferred Stock, or other purgoséhe table below sets forth the
operating results of those assets classified asouiiued operations in the CompamyConsolidated Financial Statements. These
classified as discontinued operations comprisendilRon square feet of office and industrial propes and 173 rental residential units ¢
during 2006 and all of 2007. These loinged assets relate to disposal activities thateweitiated subsequent to the effective date of S/
144, or that met certain stipulations prescribedIBAS No. 144. The operations of these assets baga reclassified from the ongo
operations of the Company to discontinued operatiand the Company will not have any significanitowing involvement in the operatic
after the disposal transactions:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006

Rental and other revenues $ 208 $ 483 $ 437¢ $ 11,00¢
Operating expenses:

Rental property and other expen 95( 1,89¢ 1,93: 4,27¢

Depreciation and amortization 512 1,51¢ 1,117 3,13:

Total operating expenses 1,46: 3,414 3,05(C 7,41(

Interest expense - 10z - 20%
Other income 2 24 12 50
Income before minority interest in the Operating Patnership and gains

on sales of discontinued operations 622 1,34¢ 1,33¢ 3,44¢

Minority interest in discontinued operations (42) (120 (95) (313)
Income from discontinued operations, net of minoriy interest in the

Operating Partnership 58C 1,224 1,24: 3,131

Gains on sales of discontinued operations 103 313 19,84¢ 2,207

Minority interest in discontinued operations ) (28) (1,48¢) (164)
Gains on sales of discontinued operations, net ofinority interest in

the Operating Partnership 96 28¢ 18,35¢ 2,04
Total discontinued operations $ 67¢ $ 150¢ $ 19,60! $ 5,17¢

The net book value of properties classified asatiioued operations that were sold during 2006 alhaf 2007 aggregated $28
million.

SFAS No. 144 also requires that a Idivigd asset classified as held for sale be measatréite lower of the carrying value or fair ve
less cost to sell. During the six months ended B@007 and 2006, there were no properties lelddle which had a carrying value that
greater than fair value less cost to sell; themfoilo impairment loss was recognized in the Codatdd Statements of Income for the
months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006.
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9. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND THE IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS- Continued

SFAS No. 144 also requires that if indicators op&inment exist, the carrying value of a loinged asset classified as held for use
compared to the sum of its estimated undiscountedd cash flows. If the carrying value is gredtem the sum of its undiscounted future
flows, an impairment loss should be recognizedtierexcess of the carrying amount of the assetits/estimated fair value. In each of the
months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, no indicafompairment existed for assets held for use. &fwge, no impairment losses w
recorded in the six months ended June 30, 2002606.

The following table includes the major classes s¥feds and liabilities of the properties classifisdheld for sale as of June 30, 2007
December 31, 2006:

June 30, December 31,
2007 2006
Land $ - $ 3,46:
Land held for developme! 3,15¢ 15,45¢
Buildings and tenant improvemer - 21,94¢
Accumulated depreciation - (6,829)
Net real estate ass¢ 3,15¢ 34,03¢
Deferred leasing costs, r - 43t
Accrued straight line rents receival - 727
Prepaid expenses and other 54 24¢
Total assets $ 3,21 $ 35,44¢
Tenant security deposits, deferred rents and adarosty1) $ 11C  $ 52E

(1) Included in accounts payable, accrued expensestand liabilities.
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10. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation asiz and diluted earnings per share:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006
Basic income per share:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operatiol $ 8,61: $ 476¢ $  4224¢ $  15,24¢
Preferred Stock dividenc (3,84¢) (4,113 (7,959 (8,837%)
Excess of Preferred Stock redemption costs oveyiogrvalue (1,447 - (1,447 (1,809
Income from continuing operations available for coom
stockholders 3,32¢ 651 32,84« 4,60t
Income from discontinued operations 67€ 1,50¢ 19,60 5,17¢
Net income available for common stockholders $ 4,000 $ 2,16( $ 52,44 $ 9,77¢
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per share — weigatedage
sharesq) 56,46( 53,87¢ 56,21¢ 53,87:
Basic earnings per shal
Income from continuing operatiol $ 0.0¢ $ 0.01 & 0.5¢ $ 0.0¢
Income from discontinued operations 0.01 0.07 0.3¢ 0.1C
Net income $ 0.07 $ 0.04 $ 0.9 $ 0.1¢
Diluted income per share:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operatiol $ 8,61: $ 476¢ $  42,24¢ $ 15,24:
Preferred Stock dividenc (3,846 (4,119 (7,959 (8,837%)
Excess of Preferred Stock redemption costs oveyiogrvalue (1,449 - (1,449 (1,807%)
Minority interest in the Operating Partnership 22¢ 62 2,63¢ 457
Income from continuing operations available for coom
stockholders 3,55z 713 35,47¢ 5,06%
Income from discontinued operatic 67€ 1,50¢ 19,60: 5,17¢
Minority interest in the Operating Partnership iscdntinued
operations 49 14¢€ 1,58 AT
Income from discontinued operations 72¢E 1,657 21,18¢ 5,651
Net income available for common stockholders $ 427¢ $ 237C $ 56,66: $ 10,71
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per share — adjuseghted
average share) 56,46( 53,87¢ 56,21¢ 53,87:
Add:
Employee and director stock options and warr 722 1,144 88< 1,16¢
Common Units 4,10¢ 5,251 4,322 5,33¢
Unvested restricted stock 27¢€ 113 28¢ 94
Denominator for diluted earnings per share — adflisteighted
average shares and assumed conver(2) 61,56 60,38’ 61,70¢ 60,47(
Diluted earnings per shat
Income from continuing operatiol $ 0.0¢ $ 0.01 & 0.5¢ $ 0.0¢
Income from discontinued operations 0.01 0.0z 0.3 0.0¢
Net income $ 0.07 $ 0.04 $ 09z $ 0.1¢
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per siire data)

10. EARNINGS PER SHARE - Continued
(1) Weighted average shares exclude shares of unvestgitted stock pursuant SFAS No. 128“Earnings per Shar”

(2) Options and warrants aggregating approximately riilion and 1.1 million shares were outstandingidgrthe three months enc
June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and 0.1amilind 1.0 million shares were outstanding durirggix months ended June 30, 2
and 2006, respectively, but were not included endbmputation of diluted earnings per share bectugsexercise prices of the options
warrants were higher than the average market pfi@mmon Stock during these perio

11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains its cash and cash equivalgastments and its restricted cash at financistitutions. The combined acco
balances at each institution typically exceed Fidi§irance coverage and, as a result, there is @ntmation of credit risk related to amot
on deposit in excess of FDIC insurance coverage.
Land Leases

Certain properties in the Compasywholly owned portfolio are subject to land leasgpiring through 2082. Rental payments on t
leases are adjusted annually based on either tiguoer price index (CPI) or on a pietermined schedule. Land leases subject to ines
under a pre-determined schedule are accountednfterithe straighine method. Total expense recorded for land leases $0.7 million fc
each of the six months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006

For one property owned at June 30, 2007, the Coynpas the option to purchase the leased land itthihe year of the lease term ¢
purchase price of $1.1 million, which increases@&%ually beginning in year three through the fifitbeyear of the lease.

As of June 30, 2007, the Compasiypayment obligations for future minimum paymentsoperating leases (which include sched
fixed increases, but exclude increases based oyw@Pé as follows:

Remainder of 200 $ 533
2008 1,077
2009 1,11¢
2010 1,13¢
2011 1,15¢
Thereafter 45,54

Environmental Matters

Substantially all of the Company’s Bervice properties have been subjected to Phaswiloemental assessments (and, in ce
instances, Phase Il environmental assessmentsh &ssessments and/or updates have not revealeds nmoanagement aware of, i
environmental liability that management believesilddiave a material adverse effect on the acconmpgr§onsolidated Financial Statements.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per siire data)

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - Continued

Guarantees and Other Obligations

The following is a tabular presentation and relatisgussion of various guarantees and other odigas of June 30, 2007:

Amount Date
. . Type of Recorded/ Guarantee

Entity or Transaction Guarantee or Other Obligation Deferred Expires
Des Moines Joint Venture),(6) Debt $ — 11/2015
RRHWoods, LLC(2),(7) Indirect Debi(s) $ 403 8/2010
Plaza Colonnad(2),(8) Indirect Debi(s) $ 37 12/2009
SF-HIW Harborview Plaza, LI{3),(5) Rent and tenant improveme4) $ — 9/2007
Eastshore (Capital On(3),(9) Rent(4) $ 1,86¢ 11/2007
Industrial(3),(10) Environmental costg) $ 12& Until

Remediater

Highwoods DLF 97/26 DLF 99/32, L(2),(11) Rent(4) $ 41¢ 6/2008
RRHWoods, LLC and Dallas County Partn(2),(12) Indirect Debi(4) $ 49 6/2014
RRHWoods, LLC2),(14) Indirect Debi(4) $ 28 11/2009
HIW-KC Orlando, LLC(3),(13) Rent() $ 371 4/2011
HIW-KC Orlando, LLC(3),(13) Leasing Cost $ 29z Until Paid
Capitalized Lease Obligatioi(1s) Debt $ 41C Various
Brickstone(2),(16) Debt $ — 5/2017
(1) Represents guarantees entered into prior to theadat, 2003 effective date of FASB Interpretatidm. 45, “Guarantos Accounting an

)
3)

(4)

(5)

Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Includirdjréct Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others” (“#8R) for initial recognition an
measuremen

Represents guarantees that fall under the ing@gnition and measurement requirements of FIM

Represents guarantees that are excluded from ithealae accounting and disclosure provisions dff Bb because the existence of ¢
guarantees prevents sale treatment and/or thenitioogof profit from the sale transactic

The maximum potential amount of future paymentgldged for these guarantees assumes the Compasytipaymaximum possit
liability under the guaranty with no offsets or uetions. With respect to the rent guarantee, ifgpace is leased, it assumes the exi
tenant defaults at June 30, 2007 and the spaceinemaleased through the remainder of the guartarty. If the space is vacant
assumes the space remains vacant through the toipicd the guaranty. Since it is assumed thatew tenant will occupy the space, le
commissions, if applicable, are exclud

As more fully described in Note 3 to the ConsokdhEFinancial Statements in the Company’s 2006 AhRegort on Form 10, in 200z
the Company granted its partner in BRA/ Harborview Plaza, LP a put option and entergd & master lease arrangement for five y
covering vacant space in the building owned byjtire venture. The Company also agreed to pay icetémant improvement costs. 7
maximum potential amount of future payments the @gamy could be required to make related to the rprdrantees and ten
improvements was less than $0.1 million as of Bhe&2007
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per siire data)

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - Continued

The Company has guaranteed certain loans in cdonegith the Des Moines joint ventures. The maximpaiential amount of futu
payments that the Company could be required to maker the guarantees is $8.6 million at June 807 2This amount relates to hous
revenue bonds that require credit enhancementdditi@n to the real estate mortgages. The bonds ddkating interest rate, which
June 30, 2007 averaged 3.84%, and mature in 2018 joint ventures are unable to repay the ontitey balance under these hou:
revenue bonds, the Company will be required toyeéfsamaximum exposure under these loans. Recqumsasions exist that enable
Company to recover some or all of such payments fitee joint venturesassets. The joint venture currently generatescieiffi cash flo\
to cover the debt service required by the I

In connection with the RRHWoods, LLC joint ventutiee Company guaranteed $3.1 million relating tet&r of credit and correspond
master lease, which expires in August 2010. Theayuee requires the Company to pay under a comtingaster lease if the cash flc
from the building securing the letter of credit ot cover at least 50% of the minimum debt servidee letter of credit along with t
building secure the industrial revenue bonds usdih&ince the property. These bonds mature in 2B&6ourse provisions exist such
the Company could recover some or all of the paymemade under the letter of credit guarantee frbenjbint ventures assets. ¢
June 30, 2007, the Company recorded a $0.4 mitigierred charge included in other assets and iti@silon its Consolidated Balar
Sheet with respect to this guarantee. The Con’s maximum potential exposure under this guarante$8.1 million at June 30, 20(

The Plaza Colonnade, LLC joint venture has a $30aminon+ecourse mortgage that bears a fixed interestofae’ %, requires month
principal and interest payments and matures onafsu81i, 2017. The Company and its joint venturenerhave signed a conting
master lease limited to 30,772 square feet, whiglires in December 2009. The Companyaximum exposure under this master |
was $1.2 million at June 30, 2007. However, theentroccupancy level of the building is sufficiémtcover all debt service requiremer

As more fully described in Note 3 to the Consokdhfinancial Statements in the Company’s 2006 AhRegort on Form 10, in
connection with the sale of three office buildirtgsa third party in 2002 (the “Eastshoreadnsaction), the Company agreed to guar:
rent shortfalls and re-tenanting costs for a fieatyperiod of time from the date of sale (througbvé&mber 2007). The Compansy’
maximum exposure to loss under these agreement$ &me 30, 2007 was $1.9 million. These threedingls were leased to a sin
tenant, Capital One Services, Inc., a subsidiarZapital One Financial Services, Inc., under ledkatexpire from May 2006 to Mar
2010. This transaction had been accounted for fasaacing transaction and was recorded as a coetplséle transaction in the tF
guarter of 2005 when the maximum exposure to loseuthese guarantees became less than the rdifided gain; gain is now be
recognized as the maximum exposure under the giegsis reduce(

(10)In December 2003, the Company sold 1.9 million sgdeet of industrial property. As part of the sdlee Company agreed to indemi

and hold the buyer harmless with respect to enwiemtal concerns on the property of up to $0.1 arilliAs a result, $0.1 million of t
gain was deferred at the time of sale and will riendaferred until the environmental concerns areediated

(11)In the Highwoods DLF 97/26 DLF 99/32, LP joint verg, a single tenant currently leases an entirlgibpgi under a lease schedulet

expire on June 30, 2008. The tenant also leases $pather buildings owned by the Company. In goofion with an overall restructuri
of the tenans leases with the Company and with this joint vextdthe Company agreed to certain changes to tse lith the joir
venture in September 2003. The modifications inetudllowing the tenant to vacate the premises onalg 1, 2006, reducing the r
obligation by 50.0% and converting the “net” lease “full service”lease with the tenant liable for 50.0% of thesd<as that time. |
turn, the Company agreed to compensate the jomtuve for any economic losses incurred as a refultese lease modifications. As
June 30, 2007, the Company has approximately $0lémin other liabilities and $0.4 million as &férred charge in other assets reco
on its Consolidated Balance Sheet to account tdhse guarantee. However, should new tenantpytia vacated space prior to the
of the guarantee period, in June 2008, the Compaligbility under the guarantee would diminish. TGempanys maximum potenti
amount of future payments with regard to this gnea as of June 30, 2007 was $0.5 million. No resmprovisions exist to enable
Company to recover any amounts paid to the jointwe under this lease guarantee arranger

25



HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per siire data)

11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - Continued

(12)RRHWoods, LLC and Dallas County Partners finandeel ¢onstruction of two buildings with a $7.4 millidenyear loan. As ¢
inducement to make the loan at a 6.3% ltegn rate, the Company and its partner agreed tstandease the vacant space and
guaranteed $0.8 million of the debt with limitedoarse. As leasing improves, the guarantee obtigatinder the loan agreement dimir
As of June 30, 2007, master lease payments of $Di0B®n were made. The Company currently has reéedr$0.05 million in othi
liabilities and $0.05 million as a deferred changeuded in other assets on its Consolidated BaleéBleet with respect to this guarar
The maximum potential amount of future payments$ tha Company could be required to make based emrdirent leases in place \
approximately $2.1 million as of June 30, 2007. Tikelihood of the Company paying on its $0.8 noilliguarantee is remote since
joint venture currently satisfies the minimum debverage ratio and should the Company have totpgyoition of the guarantee, it wo
be entitled to recover the $0.8 million from otf@nt venture asset

(13)As more fully described in Note 2 to the Consokdhfinancial Statements in the Company’s 2006 AhRegort on Form 10, in
connection with the formation of HIWC Orlando, LLC, the Company agreed to guarante¢ tiee the joint venture for 3,248 renta
square feet commencing in August 2004 and expiringpril 2011. The Compang’ maximum potential amount of future payments
regard to the guarantee is $0.4 million as of BMe2007. Additionally, the Company agreed to gogza the initial leasing cos
originally estimated at $4.1 million, for approxitely 11% of the total square feet of the properyed by the joint venture. The Comp.
has paid approximately $0.06 million in 2007 undeis guarantee, and approximately $0.3 million $tineated to remain under 1
guarantee at June 30, 20

(14)In connection with the RRHWoods, LLC joint ventutike Company and its partner each guaranteed $ili0mto a bank. This guarant
expires in November 2009 and can be renewed, gbihieventures option, through November 2011. The bank provaléstter of cred
securing industrial revenue bonds, which matufdamember 2015. The joint ventuseindustrial building secures the bonds. The Com
would be required to perform under the guarantemilshthe joint venture be unable to repay the boffde Company has recou
provisions to recover from the joint ventwsedssets. The property collateralizing the bondeigdes sufficient cash flow to cover the
service required by the bond financing. In additiorthe direct guarantee, the Company is commttieal master lease for 50% of the (
service should the cash flow from the propertyb®tble to pay the debt service of the bonds. &salt of this master lease, the Comg
has recorded $0.03 million in other liabilities sasla deferred charge in other assets on its ddassd Balance Sheet at June 30, 2!

(15)Represents capitalized lease obligations of $0lHomirelated to office equipment, which is inclubim accounts payable, accrued expe
and other liabilities on the Compé’'s Consolidated Balance Sheet at June 30, ¢

(16)In 2006, RRHWoods, LLC completed construction ofddiice building with a loan by the Compamsyjoint venture partner. In Febru
2007, the joint venture borrowed $4.1 million. Tiban is nonrecourse; however, since the building was only @bl€ased at the time 1
loan closed, the lender required a $1.5 millioteledf credit as additional collateral. At June 2007, the building was 42.0% leased.
Companys joint venture partner agreed to provide theletteredit and the Company has in turn agree@itaburse its partner for 50.0
The Company would be required to pay on its guagashould the joint venture be unable to repayttistanding loan balance. Howe
the joint venture currently generates sufficiergircliow to cover the debt service required by tianl As a result, no liability was recort
for the letter of credit guarantee as of June 80,72
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11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - Continued
Litigation, Claims and Assessments

The Company is from time to time a party to a ugrigf legal proceedings, claims and assessmergma@rin the ordinary course of
business. The Company regularly assesses theitlegiind contingencies in connection with thesdtens based on the latest informa
available. For those matters where it is probabl the Company has incurred or will incur a lossl #he loss or range of loss car
reasonably estimated, reserves are recorded i@dhsolidated Financial Statements. In other inggnbecause of the uncertainties relat
both the probable outcome and amount or rangessf B reasonable estimate of liability, if any,re#trbe made. Based on the current expt
outcome of such matters, none of these proceedalgisns or assessments is expected to have a alaeierse effect on the Compasy’
business, financial condition or results of operadi

In 2006 and March 2007, the Company received assegs for state excise taxes and related interastiating to approximately $t
million, related to periods 2002 through 2005. e fourth quarter of 2006, approximately $0.5 miiliwas accrued and charged to oper:
expenses in anticipation of a probable settlemétitase claims. The Company does not anticipategoeiquired to pay any additional amoi
in settlement of these claims. Legal fees relatethis matter were nominal and were charged toatpey expenses as incurred in 2006
2007.

12  INCOME TAXES

The Companys Consolidated Financial Statements include operstiof the taxable REIT subsidiary, which is notitesd to the
dividends paid deduction and is subject to corgoratate and local income taxes. As a REIT, the 2oy may also be subject to cer
federal excise taxes if it engages in certain tygfésansactions.

Other than the liability for an uncertain tax pmsitand related accrued interest under FIN 48 dised below, no provision has been n
for federal and state income taxes for the REITrduthe three month periods ended June 30, 2002@06 because the Company qualifie
a REIT under the Code. The taxable REIT subsidiey operated at a cumulative taxable loss througk 30, 2007 of approximately $1
million and has paid no income taxes since its fdiom. In addition to the $4.7 million deferred tazset for these cumulative tax |
carryforwards, the taxable REIT subsidiary also hatldeferred tax liabilities of approximately $Ixllion comprised primarily of tax vers
book basis differences in certain investments aqtetiable assets held by the taxable REIT subgidieecause the future tax benefit of al
the cumulative losses is not assured, the apprazi®a 9 million net deferred tax asset positiorihef taxable REIT subsidiary has been 1
reserved as management does not believe thatnbis likely than not that the net deferred tax assk be recognized. Accordingly, no t
benefit has been recognized in the accompanyings@ioiated Financial Statements. The tax benefithef cumulative losses could
recognized for financial reporting purposes in fatperiods to the extent the taxable REIT subsidi@nerates sufficient taxable income.
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12. INCOME TAXES - Continued

In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, which clesifthe accounting for uncertainty in income taxasgnized in an enterprise’
financial statements in accordance with SFAS N@. 1BIN 48 prescribes a comprehensive model for rdgognition, measureme
presentation and disclosure in the Comparfinancial statements for uncertain tax posititaien or expected to be taken in an incomi
return. The Company adopted FIN 48 effective JantiaR007.

In connection with the adoption of FIN 48, on Jayub 2007, the Company recorded a $1.4 milliohility for an uncertain tax positic
with the related expense reflected as a reductiché beginning balance of distributions in exacafsset earnings. This liability is included
accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheitieghilThe Company believes it is reasonably pésghmt, during the third quarter of 20
the liability for the uncertain tax position wilelreversed, and income recognized, upon the eipiraf the applicable statute of limitations.

In addition, the Company adopted the policy of sifiging related interest and penalties as incomeetgense. On January 1, 2(
approximately $0.2 million of accrued interest wasorded for uncertain tax positions as part ofghet million noted above. There were
significant changes in the components of the lighduring the first six months of 2007. No penadtihave been accrued.

The Company is subject to federal, state and locaime tax examinations by tax authorities for 26@8ugh 2006.
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13. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The principal business of the Company is the adipis development and operation of rental reabtestproperties. The Comp:
operates in four segments: office, industrial,itetad residential propertieEach segment has different customers and econdraracteristic
as to rental rates and terms, cost per squareofdmtildings, the purposes for which customers thgespace, the degree of maintenance
customer support required and customer dependencyifterent economic drivers, among others. Them @o material intesegmer
transactions.

The accounting policies of the segments are theesasthose described in Note 1 included hereirthEgrall operations are within 1
United States and, at June 30, 2007, no tenartheoMtholly Owned Properties comprised more than 6d8%he Company consolidate
revenues.

The following table summarizes the rental incomet, operating income and assets for each reporsdgenent for the three and
months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006

Rental and other revenuesi)

Office segmen $ 8826t $ 8328t $ 17553. $ 164,55

Industrial segmer 7,392 7,28 14,95¢ 14,44¢

Retail segmer 10,43¢ 10,14( 21,99( 20,68«

Residential segment 30¢ 301 61¢ 611
Total rental and other revenues $ 106,400 $ 101,01+ $ 213,09¢0 $ 200,30:
Net operating income:(1)

Office segmen $ 55660 $ 52,358 $ 110,50¢( $ 103,75(

Industrial segmer 5,54z 5,62¢ 11,36% 11,09(

Retail segmer 6,83t 6,72¢ 14,46: 13,66:

Residential segment 10¢ 132 22€ 27C
Total net operating income 68,14¢ 64,84 136,56« 128,77:
Reconciliation to income before disposition of proerty, insurance gain,

minority interest and equity in earnings of unconstidated affiliates:

Depreciation and amortizatic (30,039 (28,110 (59,17¢) (55,24¢)

General and administrative expel (10,86%) (9,060 (21,779 (17,752

Interest expens (24,70 (26,21¢) (48,94 (51,719

Interest and other incon 2,117 1,14z 3,632 3,112

Loss on debt extinguishments - (467) - (467)
Income before disposition of property, insurancia gainority interest and

equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilia $ 466 % 213: $ 1029 §  6,70¢

June 30, December 31,
2007 2006

Total Assets(2)

Office segmen $ 2,246,76. $ 2,218,70!

Industrial segmer 243,98 230,10¢

Retail segmer 244,33t 247,88

Rental residential segme 21,19¢ 21,93

Corporate and other 132,01 126,22!
Total Assets $ 2,888,30. $ 2,844,85.

(1) Net of discontinued operatior
(2) Real estate and other assets held for sale aredeatlin this table according to the segment t
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14 OTHER EVENTS

Gain on Property Insurance Settlement

In the fourth quarter of 2005, one of the Comparyffice properties located in southeastern Flosidstained damage in a hurricane.
damages are fully insured except for a $341,00Qctdze, which was expensed in the fourth quarfe2G®5. The Company did not incur ¢
significant loss of rental income as a result of thamages. In 2006, the Company received $2.4omifiom the insurance company
advances on the final settlement; these amounte wemarily for clean up costs and certain repaliise Company is in the process
completing final permanent repairs. During thetfgqaarter of 2007, the insurance company paid thie@ny an additional $4.9 million ug
finalization of the claim. The Company recordedalmillion gain under FASB Interpretation No. 3Bccounting for Involuntary Conversi
of Non-Monetary Assets to Monetary Assets” in tistfquarter of 2007.

Preferred Stock Transactions

On May 29, 2007, the Company redeemed 1.6 millibitsmutstanding Series B Preferred Shares, aggireg$40.0 million plus accru
and unpaid dividends. In connection with this regéam, the $1.4 million excess of the redemptiostawver the net carrying amount of
redeemed shares was recorded as a reduction iticoate available for common shareholders in thesgguarter of 2007.

On August 6, 2007, in a privately negotiated tratisa, the Company repurchased and retired 22,08 outstanding Series A Prefer
Shares for an aggregate purchase price of $22l®miln connection with this repurchase, the agpnate $0.8 million excess of the purch
cost over the net carrying amount of the repurathas@res will be recorded as a reduction to netnecavailable for common shareholdel
the third quarter of 2007.

Misstatement of Restricted Cash

Subsequent to the issuance of the interim finamsti@ements for the period ended June 30, 2007ageament determined that c
disposition proceeds that are set aside and desifjyra intended to fund future tabeferred exchanges of qualifying real estate imaest:
should have been presented as restricted caslr thttreas cash and cash equivalents, as previogstyted. As a result of this misstatem
we have restated our interim Consolidated Baladme6as of June 30, 2007 and the related Consetidatatement of Cash Flows for the
months ended June 30, 2007 as more fully set forthe table below. The restatement did not impactConsolidated Statements of Incom
any period.

As
Previously
Reported Adjustment As Restated

Consolidated Balance Shee
As of June 30, 2007:

Cash and cash equivale $ 16,83¢ $ (14,239 $ 2,60(
Restricted cas $ 3,78C % 14,23¢ $ 18,01¢
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Six months ended June 30, 2007:

Changes in restricted cash and other investingities $ (1,41 $ (14,239 $ (15,659
Net cash used in investing activiti $ (48,26 $ (14,239 $ (62,500
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equis. $ 14¢ $ (14,239 $ (14,090
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 16,83¢ $ (14,239 $ 2,60(
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion and arialys conjunction with the accompanying Consolidiaténancial Statements ¢
related notes contained elsewhere in this amendedit€ly Report. This discussion and analysis gefésct to the restatement as discussi
Note 14 to the accompanying Consolidated Finarfiatements. In addition, in accordance with Statgéroé Financial Accounting Stand:
No. 144,“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Lohgred Assets,” (“SFAS No. 144"the operations of any property sold during
six months ended December 31, 2007 have been sdigddsnto discontinued operations.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Some of the information in this Quarterly Reportymzontain forwardeoking statements. Such statements include, iticodar,
statements about our plans, strategies and praspeder this section and under the heading "Busihé®u can identify forwardeoking
statements by our use of forward-looking terminglauich as "may,” "will,” "expect,” "anticipate,” $&mate,” ‘tontinue" or other simil;
words. Although we believe that our plans, intemsicand expectations reflected in or suggested b $orwardlooking statements &
reasonable, we cannot assure you that our platesitions or expectations will be achieved. Whensagring such forwartboking statement
you should keep in mind the following importanttfas that could cause our actual results to diffiaterially from those contained in ¢
forward-looking statement:

e Speculative development activity by our competitorsour existing markets could result in an exossssupply of office
industrial and retail properties relative to tend@tmand

o the financial condition of our tenants could detmte;

e We may not be able to complete development, adprisireinvestment, disposition or joint ventur@jpcts as quickly or on
favorable terms as anticipate

e We may not be able to lease or release space yuckin as favorable terms as old leases;
e increases in interest rates would increase our sklice costs;

e We may not be able to meet our liquidity requiretaesr obtain capital on favorable terms to fund working capital needs a
growth initiatives or to repay or refinance outstiaig debt upon maturity

e Wwe could lose key executive officers; €
e our southeastern and midwestern markets may suifitexpected declines in economic grov

This list of risks and uncertainties, however, @ imtended to be exhaustive. You should also vevhe other cautionary statements
make in “Business — Risk Factors” set forth in 2006 Annual Report.

Given these uncertainties, you should not placeuengliance on forwartboking statements. We undertake no obligation ubliply
release the results of any revisions to these fiahdemking statements to reflect any future eventsimmumstances or to reflect the occurre
of unanticipated events.

OVERVIEW

We are a fully integrated, self-administered arlét smnaged equity REIT that provides leasing, managgndevelopment, constructi
and other customer-related services for our pragseend for third parties. As of June 30, 2007,om@ed or had an interest in 3865@arvice
office, industrial and retail properties, encompagapproximately 34.1 million square feet, whiadkludes eight irservice office and industr
development properties that had not yet reached $a%ilized occupancy aggregating approximatelynifon square feet, and 527 rer
residential units. We are based in Raleigh, Nor#fnoina, and our properties and development laedl@cated in Florida, Georgia, lov
Kansas, Maryland, Missouri, North Carolina, Soutrdlina, Tennessee and Virginia.
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Additional information about us can be found on aabsite at www.highwoods.com. Information on owbsite is not part of this Quarte
Report.

Results of Operations

Approximately 83% of our rental and other revemaenf continuing operations is derived from our adfigroperties. As a result, while
own and operate a limited number of industriakitetnd residential properties, our operating tsstépend heavily on successfully leasing
office properties. Furthermore, since approxima®@6 of our annualized revenues from office prdpertome from properties locatec
Florida, Georgia, North Carolina and Tennesseep@unic growth in those states is and will continodé an important determinative facto
predicting our future operating results.

The key components affecting our rental revenueastr are dispositions, acquisitions, new developsefdced in service, aver:
occupancy and rental rates. Average occupancy génancreases during times of improving economiovgth, as our ability to lease sp.
outpaces vacancies that occur upon the expiratbexisting leases. Average occupancy generalljirte during times of slower econor
growth, when new vacancies tend to outpace ouityabil lease space. Asset acquisitions, dispostemd new developments placed in sel
directly impact our rental revenues and could impag average occupancy, depending upon the occypate of the properties that
acquired, sold or placed in service. A further aador of the predictability of future revenueshs expected lease expirations of our portf
As a result, in addition to seeking to increase awgrage occupancy by leasing current vacant speeelso must concentrate our lea
efforts on renewing leases on expiring space. Wdrath not our rental revenue tracks average ocaypproportionally depends upon whet
rents under new leases signed are higher or |dveerthe rents under the previous leases.

Our expenses primarily consist of rental properyenses, depreciation and amortization, generabdndnistrative expenses and inte
expense. Rental property expenses are expensesaasdavith our ownership and operation of rentalperties and include expenses that
somewhat, such as common area maintenance artgesitiind relatively fixed expenses, such as ptggaeres and insurance. Some of tl
variable expenses may be lower when our averaggpaocy declines. Depreciation and amortizationnsm@cash expense associated with
ownership of real property and generally remaitetirely consistent each year, unless we buy dresslets, since we depreciate our prope
on a straightine basis over fixed lives. General and admintsteaexpenses, net of amounts capitalized, copsistarily of management a
employee salaries and other personnel costs, aigand division overhead and lotggm incentive compensation. Interest expense di=
primarily upon the amount of our borrowings, theigited average interest rates on our debt and theuat of interest capitalized
development projects.

We record in “equity in earnings of unconsolidatftiliates” our proportionate share of net income or loss, sadfli for purchas
accounting effects, of our unconsolidated jointtuess.

Additionally, SFAS No. 144 requires us to record imeome received from properties sold or helddale that qualify as discontint
operations under SFAS No. 144 separately as “inclwam discontinued operations&s a result, we separately record revenues andneg)
from these qualifying properties. As also requitgd SFAS No. 144, prior period results are reclégito reflect the operations for si
properties in discontinued operations.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We incur capital expenditures to lease space t@ostomers and to maintain the quality of our proee to successfully compete aga
other properties. Tenant improvements are the cegtsired to customize the space for the spec#ds of the customer. Lease commis:
are costs incurred to find the customer for theegphease incentives are costs paid to or on beh&dnants to induce them to enter into le
and that do not relate to customizing the spacéh®tenans specific needs. Building improvements are rengrdapital costs not related t
customer to maintain the buildings. As leases expire either attempt to relet the space to aniegistustomer or attract a new custome
occupy the space. Generally, customer renewalsreetpwer leasing capital expenditures than reigttio new customers. However, ma
conditions such as supply of available space inntlagket, as well as demand for space, drive not onstomer rental rates but also te
improvement costs. Leasing capital expendituresarertized over the term of the lease and buildimgrovements are depreciated over the
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appropriate useful life of the assets acquiredhBoé included in depreciation and amortizatioresults of operations.

Because we are a REIT, we are required under thexdktax laws to distribute at least 90% of oul R&axable income, excluding cap
gains, to our stockholders. We generally use rezisived from customers and proceeds from sale®mwtore development land to fund
operating expenses, recurring capital expenditares stockholder dividends. To fund property acdoiss, development activity or buildi
renovations, we may sell other assets and may idebt from time to time. Our debt generally corssist mortgage debt, unsecured «
securities and borrowings under our revolving dréadiility.

As of December 31, 2006 and August 1, 2007, wedpgaoximately $113 million and $359 million, restieely, of additional combine
borrowing availability under our unsecured revotyredit facility and under our secured revolvimgstruction credit facility.

Our revolving credit facility and the indenture goming our outstanding longrm unsecured debt securities require us to gateaious
operating and financial covenants and performaaties. As a result, to ensure that we do not wothe provisions of these debt instrume
we may from time to time be limited in undertakiogrtain activities that may otherwise be in thet leterest of our stockholders, suct
repurchasing capital stock, acquiring additionale#s, increasing the total amount of our debt oreiasing stockholder dividends. We rev
our current and expected operating results, firro@ndition and planned strategic actions on agony basis for the purpose of monitol
our continued compliance with these covenants atids. Any unwaived event of default could resalan acceleration of some or all of
debt, severely restrict our ability to incur adulital debt to fund short- and long-term cash needssult in higher interest expense.

To generate additional capital to fund our growtkl ather strategic initiatives and to lessen th@enship risks typically associated v
owning 100.0% of a property, we may sell some of moperties or contribute them to joint venturdthen we create a joint venture wit
strategic partner, we usually contribute one oreymoperties that we own and/or vacant land toveynormed entity in which we retain
interest of 50.0% or less. In exchange for our equaninority interest in the joint venture, we geally receive cash from the partner and re
some or all of the management income relating égpttoperties in the joint venture. The joint ventitself will frequently borrow money on
own behalf to finance the acquisition of, and/mel@ge the return upon, the properties being aeduy the joint venture or to build or acq;
additional buildings. Such borrowings are typicailly a nonrecourse or limited recourse basis. We generaéiynat liable for the debts of ¢
joint ventures, except to the extent of our equityestment, unless we have directly guaranteedodnlyat debt. In most cases, we and/or
strategic partners are required to guarantee castoexceptions to non-recourse liability in n@tourse loans. See Note 11 to the Consoli
Financial Statements for additional informationaantain debt guarantees. We have historically sdéo additional Common Stock or Prefel
Stock or issued Common Units to fund additionalgloor to reduce our debt, but we have limited ¢hefforts since 1998 because fu
generated from our capital recycling program irergg/ears have provided sufficient funds to satefy liquidity needs. In addition, we he
recently used funds from our capital recycling pemg to redeem Common Units and Preferred Stockdeh. In the future, we may from ti
to time retire some or all of our remaining outsliag Preferred Stock through redemptions, open aetampurchases, privately negoti
acquisitions or otherwise.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

In accordance with SFAS No. 144 and as describddoie 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements reclassified the operatic
and/or gain/(loss) from disposal of certain projgsrto discontinued operations for all periods enésd if the operations and cash flows |
been or will be eliminated from our ongoing opeyas and we will not have any significant continuingolvement in the operations after
disposal transaction and the properties were egtblelrduring 2006 and the first six months of 200¥Were held for sale at June 30, 2007. T
were no properties sold during 2006 and the fisstroonths of 2007 that did not meet the conditiassstipulated by SFAS No. 144,

Three Months Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006

The following table sets forth information regamgliour unaudited results of operations for the timeaths ended June 30, 2007 and :
($ in millions):

Three Months Ended

June 30, 2007 to 2006
2007 2006 $ Change % of Change
Rental and other revenues $ 106.2 $ 101.1 % 5.4 5.3%
Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expen 38.2 36.2 2.C 5.t
Depreciation and amortizatic 30.C 28.1 1.9 6.8
General and administrative 10.¢ 9.C 1.9 21.1
Total operating expenses 79.1 73.2 5.8 7.¢
Interest expenses:
Contractua 23.1 24.2 (1.7 (4.5
Amortization of deferred financing cos 0.6 0.6 - -
Financing obligations 1.0 14 (0.4 (28.6)
24.7 26.2 (1.5 (5.7)
Other income:
Interest and other incon 2.1 1.1 1.C 90.¢
Loss on debt extinguishments - (0.5 0.5 100.(
2.1 0.6 15 250.(
Income before disposition of property, minority interest and equity
in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 4.7 2.1 2.6 123.¢
Gains on disposition of property, r 2.3 1.C 1.3 130.(
Minority interest (0.9 (0.2 (0.2 (100.0
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 2.0 1.9 0.1 5.2
Income from continuing operations 8.6 4.8 3.8 79.2
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations, net of miryariteresi 0.5 1.2 (0.7 (58.9)
Gains on sales of discontinued operations, netiobrity
interest 0.1 0.3 (0.2 (66.7)
0.6 15 (0.9 (60.0
Net income 9.2 6.3 2.9 46.C
Dividends on Preferred Stor (3.8 (4.2 0.3 7.2
Excess of Preferred Stock redemption cost oveyiceyvalue (1.4) - (1.4) (100.0)
Net income available for common stockholders $ 40 % 22% 1.8 81.€0p

Rental and Other Revenues

Rental and other revenues increased $5.4 millicghérsecond quarter of 2007 compared to 2006 pityrfasm higher average occupar
in 2007 as compared to 2006, the contribution fo®weloped properties placed in service in 2006thadirst six months of 2007 and hig
escalation income in 2007 as a result of the irsréa operating expenses for the same period.
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Rental Property and Other Expenses

Rental and other operating expenses from continapeyations (real estate taxes, utilities, insueamepairs and maintenance and ¢
propertyrelated expenses) increased $2.0 million in thersgquarter of 2007 compared to the second quait2@06, primarily as a result
general inflationary increases in certain operaéirgenses, such as utility costs, insurance costseal estate taxes. In addition, rental proj
and operating expenses of developed propertiegglizcservice in 2006 and the six months ended 30n2007 contributed to the increas
the second quarter of 2007.

Rental revenues less rental and other operatingrsgs increased in 2007 compared to 2006. Howalteough we recover a portion
operating costs from our tenants, which recoveaiesincluded in rental revenues, the increase @raijmg costs in 2007 was proportiona
higher than the increase in revenue, resultingshght reduction in the percentage of rental rexnless rental and other operating expen:
rental revenues compared to 2006.

The $1.9 million increase in depreciation and airation is primarily a result of the contributiorom development properties place:
service in 2006 and the six months ended June@¥,2and an increase in building improvements, rteimaprovements and deferred lea:
costs related to those buildings placed in service.

The $1.9 million increase in general and administeaexpenses was primarily related to higher gaterd fringe benefit costs, includi
stockbased compensation and employer taxes relateddk sptions exercised in the second quarter, highdit fees and higher costs writ
off in 2007 related to the termination of certame{olevelopment projects.

Interest Expense

The decrease in contractual interest was primdrily to a decrease in weighted average interest oateutstanding debt from 7.0% in
three months ended June 30, 2006 to 6.7% in tlee thonths ended June 30, 2007 and an increase4ofrilion in capitalized interest frc
the three months ended June 30, 2006 to the thoe¢ghsiended June 30, 2007 due to our increasedbgevent activity. Partly offsetting the
decreases was an increase in average borrowings#to45 billion in the three months ended June2806 to $1.52 billion in the three mon
ended June 30, 2007.

Gains on Disposition of Property

Net gains on dispositions of properties not clésdifs discontinued operations were $2.3 milliothethree months ended June 30, !
compared to $1.0 million for the three months endiede 30, 2006. Gains are dependent on the spassiets sold, their historical cost b
and other factors, and can vary significantly frpemiod to period. See Note 4 to the Consolidatedriial Statements for further discussion.
Discontinued Operations

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, we classified inebme of $0.6 million and $1.5 million, net of ronity interest, as discontinu
operations for the three months ended June 30, 20072006, respectively. These amounts relate 2omdllion square feet of office a
industrial properties and 173 rental residentiatsusold during 2006 and 2007. These amounts irchet gains on the sale of these prope
of $0.1 million and $0.3 million, net of minoritpterest, in the three months ended June 30, 20D2@06, respectively.
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Preferred Dividends and Excess of Preferred Stock Redemption Costsin Excess of Carrying Value

Preferred dividends and excess of preferred stedekmption costs decreased $0.3 million due to emgtion of $40 million of Preferr
Stock in May 2007. In addition, net income avaiéalidr common stockholders was reduced by $1.4 anillepresenting the excess of
Preferred Stock redemption cost over the net aagryalue.
Six Months Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006

The following table sets forth information regamgliour unaudited results of operations for the sonths ended June 30, 2007 and :
(% in millions):

Six Months Ended

June 30, 2007 to 2006
2007 2006 $ Change % of Change
Rental and other revenues $ 2131 % 200.: $ 12.¢ 6.4%
Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expen 76.5 71.t 5.C 7.C
Depreciation and amortizatic 59.2 55.2 4.C 7.2
General and administrative 21.€ 17.€ 4.C 22
Total operating expenses 157.F 144.F 13.C 9.
Interest expenses:
Contractua 45.7 48.1 (2.9 (5.0
Amortization of deferred financing cos 1.2 1.3 (0.2 (7.7
Financing obligations 2.0 2.3 (0.3 (13.0)
48.¢ 51.7 (2.9) (5.4
Other income:
Interest and other incon 3.6 3.1 0.5 16.1
Loss on debt extinguishments - (0.5 05 100.C
3.6 2.6 1.C 38.t
Income before disposition of property, insurance ga, minority
interest and equity in earnings of unconsolidatedféiliates 10.: 6.7 3.6 53.7
Gains on disposition of property, r 19.1 5.3 13.¢ 260.4
Gain from property insurance settlem 4.1 - 4.1 100.(
Minority interest (3.0 (0.9 (2.2 (275.0
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 11.7 4.0 7.7 192t
Income from continuing operations 42.2 15.2 27.C 177.¢
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations, net of miryariterest 1.2 3.1 (1.9 (61.9)
Gains on sales of discontinued operations, netiobrity
interest 18.4 2.1 16.2 776.2
19.€ 5.2 14.4 276.¢
Net income 61.¢ 20.4 41.4 202.¢
Dividends on Preferred Stor (8.0 (8.9 0.8 9.1
Excess of Preferred Stock redemption cost oveyicayvalue (1.4 (1.9) 0.4 22.2
Net income available for common stockholders $ 524 $ 9.8 % 42.¢ 434.704

Rental and Other Revenues
Rental and other revenues increased $12.8 milliothé six months ended June 30, 2007 comparedet@dmparable period in 20

primarily from higher average occupancy in 200t@spared to 2006, the contribution from developexperties placed in service in 2006
the first six months of 2007 and higher escalatimome in 2007 as a result of the increase in dimgraxpenses for the same period.
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Rental Property and Other Expenses

Rental and other operating expenses from continapegations (real estate taxes, utilities, insueamepairs and maintenance and ¢
propertyrelated expenses) increased $5.0 million in thst fix months of 2007 compared to the first six therof 2006, primarily as a resuli
general inflationary increases in certain operaéirgenses, such as utility costs, insurance costseal estate taxes. In addition, rental proj
and operating expenses of developed propertiegglecservice in 2006 and the six months ended 30n2007 contributed to the increas
the first six months of 2007.

Rental revenues less rental and other operatingresgs increased in 2007 compared to 2006. Howaltkough we recover a portion
operating costs from our tenants, which recoveaiesincluded in rental revenues, the increase @raijmg costs in 2007 was proportiona
higher than the increase in revenue, resultingshght reduction in the percentage of rental resmnless rental and other operating expen:
rental revenues compared to 2006.

The $4.0 million increase in depreciation and airation is primarily a result of the contributiorom development properties place
service in 2006 and the six months ended June@¥,,2and an increase in building improvements, temaprovements and deferred lea:
costs related to those buildings placed in service.

The $4.0 million increase in general and administeaexpenses was primarily related to higher gaterd fringe benefit costs, includi
stockbased compensation and employer taxes relateddk gptions exercised in the first quarter, highedit fees and higher costs written
in 2007 related to the termination of certain pexelopment projects.

Interest Expense

The decrease in contractual interest was primdrily to a slight decrease in weighted average stteages on outstanding debt from 6
in the six months ended June 30, 2006 to 6.8%adrsitk months ended June 30, 2007 and an incre&®®million in capitalized interest frc
the six months ended June 30, 2006 to the six msoatidled June 30, 2007 due to our increased devetdpactivity. Partly offsetting the
decreases was an increase in average borrowings¥io44 billion in the six months ended June 3062® $1.48 billion in the six mont
ended June 30, 2007.

Gains on Disposition of Property; Gain from Property Insurance Settlement; Minority Interest; Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated
Affiliates

Net gains on dispositions of properties not clésdifis discontinued operations were $19.1 milliothe six months ended June 30, 2
compared to $5.3 million for the six months endenel30, 2006. Gains are dependent on the spess&ts@isold, their historical cost basis
other factors, and can vary significantly from pdrto period. See Note 4 to the Consolidated Filah&tatements for further discussion.

In the first six months of 2007, we recorded a $dillion gain from finalization of a prior year ingance claim.

The increase in minority interest expense of $2ilian was primarily due to a corresponding increas the Operating Partnership’
income from continuing operations, after Preferdedt distributions.

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliatesreased $7.7 million from 2006. The increase wamarily a result of the sale of fi
properties by our DLF | joint venture, pursuantwbich the joint venture recognized a gain of apprately $9.3 million, resulting in ¢
increase of approximately $2.1 million in equityaarnings of unconsolidated affiliates in 2007. Wddally, in 2007, DLF | received a le¢
termination, of which the net effect was $2.7 roillj which resulted in an increase of approxima&dy6 million in equity in earnings
unconsolidated affiliates. In addition, in 2007¢ thiVeston Lakeside joint venture sold 332 rentaidesgial units, recognizing a gain
approximately $11.3 million, which resulted in @&riease of approximately $5.0 million in equity @reings of unconsolidated affiliates. (:
Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statement$ufidher discussion related to these transactic
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Discontinued Operations

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, we classifiedinebme of $19.6 million and $5.2 million, net of mority interest, as discontinu
operations for the six months ended June 30, 26672806, respectively. These amounts relate todlin square feet of office and indust
properties and 173 rental residential units soldndu2006 and 2007. These amounts include net gairthe sale of these properties of $
million and $2.1 million, net of minority interest the six months ended June 30, 2007 and 208p¢ectively.

Preferred Dividends and Excess of Preferred Stock Redemption Costsin Excess of Carrying Value
Preferred dividends decreased $0.8 million dueettemptions of Preferred Stock of $50 million in fivst quarter of 2006 and $

million in the second quarter of 2007. In additioef income available for common stockholders veaiced by $1.4 million and $1.8 milli
in the six months ended June 30, 2007 and 200Becésely, related to the excess of redemption owst the net carrying value.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Statement of Cash Flows

As required by GAAP, we report and analyze our dishks based on operating activities, investingwvitéés and financing activities. T
following table sets forth the changes in our démlvs in the first six months of 2007 as comparmthie first six months of 2006 (in thousan

Six Months Ended

June 30,
2007 2006 Change
Cash Provided By Operating Activities $ 76,87 $ 73,045 $ 3,83(
Cash (Used In)/Provided By Investing Activiti (62,507 96,08 (158,58¢)
Cash Used In Financing Activities (28,467 (165,41) 136,95(
Total Cash Flows $ (14,090 $ 3,71¢ $ (17,806

In calculating cash flow from operating activitiefepreciation and amortization, which are maish expenses, are added back t
income. As a result, we have historically generatesignificant positive amount of cash from opemtactivities. From period to period, ¢
flow from operations depends primarily upon chanigesur net income, as discussed more fully abowden “Results of Operations¢hange
in receivables and payables, and net additionseoredses in our overall portfolio, which affect #maount of depreciation and amortiza
expense.

Cash provided by or used in investing activitiesegally relates to capitalized costs incurred éasing and major building improveme
and our acquisition, development, disposition awittjventure activity. During periods of signifidanet acquisition and/or developm
activity, our cash used in such investing actisitieill generally exceed cash provided by investiagvities, which typically consists of ce
received upon the sale of properties and distrimstiof capital from our joint ventures.

Cash used in financing activities generally relatestockholder dividends, distributions on Comndmits, incurrence and repaymen
debt and sales, repurchases or redemptions of Constazk, Common Units and Preferred Stock. As dised previously, we use a signific
amount of our cash to fund stockholder dividends @ammon Unit distributions. Whether or not we han@eases in the outstanding balal
of debt during a period depends generally upom#tesffect of our acquisition, disposition, devetant and joint venture activity. We use
revolving credit facility for working capital purges, which means that during any given periodydeioto minimize interest expense, we
likely record significant repayments and borrowingsler our revolving credit facility.

The increase of $3.8 million in cash provided bgming activities in the six months ended June2807 compared to the same peric
2006 was primarily the result of higher cash fldwsn net income as adjusted for changes in gaindigposition of properties, a gain fror
property insurance settlement, minority interest] aquity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates.

The decrease of $158.6 million in cash providednesting activities in the six months ended Judg2B07 compared to the same pe
in 2006 was primarily a result of a $86.2 millioradease in proceeds from dispositions of real @stasets and a $57.9 million increas
additions to real estate assets and deferred fpasits. In addition, other investing activitiesuked in a decrease of $13.5 million due tc
cash received from escrow during 2006, which rdlatea collateral substitution on an existing seduloan and an outflow of cash in 2
related to proceeds from dispositions which wereastde and designated for potential future deferred real estate transactions. P
offsetting these decreases was an $11.7 milliorease in distributions of capital from unconsolethaffiliates (see Note 2 to the Consolid
Financial Statements) during the first six month2@07 compared to the first six months of 2006.

The decrease of $137.0 million in cash used innfiirey activities in the six months ended June B0;72compared to the same perio
2006 was primarily a result of an $137.9 milliorri@ase in net borrowings on the revolving crediility and mortgages and notes payat
$6.1 million increase in net proceeds on the sdl@anmon Stock, an increase of $5.1 million duedatributions from our minority intere
partners (see Note 1 to the Consolidated Finafta&kments) and a decrease of $10.0 million caesth imsconnection with the redemption
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of Preferred Stock from 2006 to 2007. These deeeagre partly offset by an increase of $20.2 arilin cash used in connection with
repurchase of Common Units from 2006 to 2007.

In 2007, we continued our capital recycling prograhselectively disposing of notere properties in order to use the net proceex
investments or other purposes. At June 30, 2007hadell acres of land classified as held for satsyant to SFAS No. 144 with a carry
value of $3.2 million.

Capitalization

The following table sets forth our capitalizatiacnhat June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006 (in tmolss@&xcept per share amounts):

June 30, December 31,
2007 2006
Mortgages and notes payable, at recorded book value $ 155757 $ 1,465,12!
Financing obligation $ 35,68: $ 35,53(
Preferred Stock, at liquidation val $ 157,44 $ 197,44!
Common Stock and Common Units outstanc 61,19: 60,94
Per share stock price at peri $ 3750 $ 40.7¢
Market value of Common Stock and Common Units 2,294,73! 2,484,07
Total market capitalization with debt and obligaso $ 404543 $ 4,182,18

Based on our total market capitalization of appreately $4.0 billion at June 30, 2007 (at the June2B07 per share stock price of $3°
and assuming the redemption for shares of CommockSif the 4.1 million Common Units not owned by tBompany), our mortgages
notes payable represented approximately 38.5% rofotal market capitalization.

Mortgages and notes payable at June 30, 2007 wagriseed of $661 million of secured indebtedness witveighted average interest
of 6.63% and $897 million of unsecured indebtedneits a weighted average interest rate of 6.53%.0Agune 30, 2007, our outstanc
mortgages and notes payable were secured by teéd essets with an aggregate undepreciated bdak ohapproximately $1.0 billion.

We do not intend to reserve funds to retire exgsircured or unsecured debt upon maturity. For r@ mamplete discussion of our long-
term liquidity needs, see “Liquidity and Capitald®erces - Current and Future Cash Needs.”
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Contractual Obligations

The following table sets forth a summary regarding known contractual obligations, including regdiiinterest payments for those it
that are interest bearing, at December 31, 2006 tf$ousands):

Amounts due during years ending December 31,

Total 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter
Mortgages and Notes Payablea)
Principal payment $ 1,465,12¢ $ 86,70¢ $ 110,341 $ 564,65¢ $ 9,057 $ 9,811 $ 684,55E
Interest paymeni(2) 461,17¢ 93,503 85,908 66,04E 46,599 45,84kF 123,27¢
Financing Obligations:
SF-HIW Harborview Plaza, LP financing
obligation(3) (9) 20,005 — — — — — 20,005
Tax Increment Financing
obligation(4) (9) 28,365 2,182 2,182 2,182 2,182 2,182 17,455
Capitalized ground lease obligati(9) 2,003 52 52 52 52 52 1,743
Capitalized lease obligationgs) 481 252 188 41 — — —
Purchase Obligations:
Completion contract(10) 133,862 104,90z 28,96C — — — —
Operating Lease Obligations:
Land lease(s) 51,191 1,063 1,079 1,119 1,137 1,157 45,636
Other Long Term Liabilities Reflected
on the Balance Sheet:
Plaza Colonnade lease guaratrs) 37 — — 37 — — —
Highwoods DLF 97/26 DLF 99/32 LP
lease guarante(s) 419 — 419 — — — —
RRHWoods and Dallas County
Partners lease guaranie) 49 — — — — — 49
RRHWoods, LLC(s) 28 — — 28 — — —
Industrial environmental guarants) 125 — — — — — 125
Eastshore lease guaran(?) 4,084 4,084 — — — — —
DLF payableg) 3,651 526 536 546 556 567 820
KC Orlando, LLC lease guarant(s) 420 97 97 97 97 32 —
KC Orlando, LLC accrued lease
commissions, tenant improvements
and building improvemen(s) 356 — — — — — 356
RRHWoods, LLCs) 403 — - — 403 — _
Total (11) $ 2,171,687 $ 293,37C $ 229,76z $ 634,802 $ 60,083 $ 59,646 $ 894,02¢

(1) See Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Stateniermsr 2006 Annual Report on Form KOfor further discussion. In addition, see No
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for furtigcussion on the $400 million aggregate prindiaes sold in 200%

(2) These amounts represent interest payments due dgage and notes payable, based on the statedfoatde fixed rate debt and on
December 31, 2006 rates for the variable rate déiat.weighted average interest rate on the variadéedebt as of December 31, 2006
6.15%.

(3) This liability represents a financing obligation dar joint venture partner as a result of accognfior this transaction as a financ
arrangement. See Note 3 to the Consolidated Fiab&tatements in our 2006 Annual Report on For-K for further discussior

(4) In connection with tax increment financing for ctrostion of a public garage related to an officalding constructed by us, we
obligated to pay fixed special assessments ové-year period. The net present value of these assa¢sndiscounted at 6.93%, wh
represents the interest rate of the underlying bnshown as a financing obligation in the Cordatied Balance Sheet in our 2006 An
Report on Form 1@&. We also receive special tax revenues and prppan rebates recorded in interest and other incarigh are
intended, but not guaranteed, to provide fundsatpothe special assessmel

(5) Included in accounts payable, accrued expensestard liabilities in our 2006 Annual Report on Fotg-K.
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(6) See Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statesriardgur 2006 Annual Report on Form-K for further discussior

(7) This represents our maximum exposure to contingsstunder our Eastshore guarantee. See Notes Boatadthe Consolidated Financ
Statements in our 2006 Annual Report on Fori-K for further discussior

(8) Represents a fixed obligation we owe our partnéfighwoods DLF 98/29, LP. This obligation arosenfran excess contribution from «
partner at the formation of the joint venture, dhd net present value of the fixed obligation disted at 9.62% which represents
interest rate derived from the agreement, is resmbiid other liabilities. See Note 2 to the Consatkdl Financial Statements in our 2
Annual Report on Form -K for further discussior

(9) Interest components of the contractual obligatiares based on the stated fixed rates in the insmtsn€or floating rate debt, interes
computed using the current rate in effect at Deearth, 2006

(10)This amount represents our estimate of contractolidations as of December 31, 2006 related toowarconstruction project

(11)In connection with the adoption of FIN 48, on Jayuh 2007, we recorded a $1.4 million liabilityr fencertain tax positions. We believ
is reasonable possible that this liability will beversed in the third quarter of 2007 due to thpiraton of the applicable statute
limitations, and therefore, have not included ittire Contractual Obligations table above. See N@e€o the Consolidated Financ
Statements for further discussic

Preferred Stock Transactions

On May 29, 2007, we redeemed 1.6 million of ourstariding Series B Preferred Shares, aggregatind $adlion plus accrued a
unpaid dividends. In connection with this redemmptithe $1.4 million excess of the redemption cograhe net carrying amount of -
redeemed shares was recorded as a reduction itecnate available for common shareholders in thersécjuarter of 2007.

On August 6, 2007, in a privately negotiated tratisa, we repurchased and retired 22,008 of oustantling Series A Preferred Shi
for an aggregate purchase price of $22.3 millioncannection with this repurchase, the approxind@t® million excess of the purchase
over the net carrying amount of the repurchasedeshaill be recorded as a reduction to net incoweglable for common shareholders in
third quarter of 2007.

Debt Financing Activity

Our $450 million unsecured revolving credit fagilis initially scheduled to mature on May 1, 2088suming no default exists, we h
an option to extend the maturity date by one aolditi year and, at any time prior to May 1, 2008y mequest increases in the borrow
availability under the credit facility by up to auditional $50 million. The interest rate is LIBQfus 80 basis points and the annual
facility fee is 20 basis points.

Our revolving credit facility and the indenture tigmverns our outstanding notes require us to cpmfih customary operating covene
and various financial and operating ratios. We e@rgrently in compliance with all such requirememdthough we expect to remain
compliance with these covenants and ratios foeadtlthe next year, depending upon our future tipgrperformance, property and financ
transactions and general economic conditions, wadatsassure you that we will continue to be in chamee.

If any of our lenders ever accelerated outstandiglgt due to an event of default, we would not ble &b borrow any further amoul
under our revolving credit facility, which would atsely affect our ability to fund our operatioffsour debt cannot be paid, refinancec
extended at maturity or upon acceleration, in @oidito our failure to repay our debt, we may notabé to make distributions to stockholc
at expected levels or at all. Furthermore, if agfjnancing is done at higher interest rates, tleeeimsed interest expense would adversely i
our cash flows and ability to make distributionsstockholders. Any such refinancing could also isgadighter financial ratios and ot
covenants that would restrict our ability to takdi@ns that would otherwise be in our stockholddysst interest, such as funding 1
development activity, making opportunistic acqinsis, repurchasing our securities or paying distidns.

On March 22, 2007, the Operating Partnership is§4€® million aggregate principal amount of 5.85%té¢ due March 15, 2017, ne
original issue discount of $1.2 million. The notesre issued under the indenture, dated as of Deseinli996, among us, the Opera
Partnership and U.S. Bank National Associatiors(ezessor in interest to Wachovia Bank, N.A.) tthetee, and pursuant to resolutions of
Board of Directors and an officersértificate dated as of March 22, 2007 establistivgterms of the notes. We used the net proceedsthe
issuance of the notes to repay borrowings outstgndnder an unsecured noevolving credit facility that was obtained on Janu31, 200
(which was subsequently terminated) and underdhelving credit facility.
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During the six months ended June 30, 2007, we s off $80 million, excluding any normal debt antiwation, of secured debt witt
weighted average interest rate of 7.88%. Approxéya®l79 million of real estate assets (based odepreciated cost basis) beci
unencumbered after paying off the secured debt.

On June 5, 2007, two thrgear secured construction loans totaling $24.7ionilwith interest at 175 basis points over LIBORrg
obtained by REES, a consolidated joint venture (¢et 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statemerts)of June 30, 2007, $1.0 million v
borrowed under these loans and is included in rageg and notes payable.

Current and Future Cash Needs

Rental and other revenues are our principal soafdeinds to meet our shomrm liquidity requirements, which primarily cortsisf
operating expenses, debt service, stockholder elivd, any guarantee obligations and recurring a@apipenditures. In addition, we co
incur tenant improvement costs and lease commissilated to any releasing of vacant space.

As of August 1, 2007, other than principal amotiza on certain secured loans, we have no outstgndiebt that matures prior to the
of 2007. We generally expect to fund our shertn liquidity needs through a combination of aablié working capital, cash flows fr
operations and the following:

o the selective disposition of non-core land and ioHssets;

e borrowings under our revolving credit facility (vehi has up to $308.8 million of availability in thggregate as of August 1, 20
and under our existing $50.0 million secured reimg\construction loan (which has $50.0 million dable at August 1, 2007

o the sale or contribution of some of our Wholly Owneroperties, development projects and developraet to strategic joil
ventures to be formed with unrelated investorscWwhiould have the net effect of generating add#iaapital through such sale
contributions;

o theissuance of secured debt;
e theissuance of unsecured debt.

Our longterm liquidity needs generally include the fundofgcapital expenditures to lease space to our mests, maintain the quality
our existing properties and build new propertieapi@l expenditures include tenant improvementsidimg improvements, new buildil
completion costs and land infrastructure costs.aneimprovements are the costs required to cuswisjiace for the specific needs of first-
generation and secomygneration customers. Building improvements arerréty capital costs not related to a specific cosr to maintai
existing buildings. New building completion costg @&xpenses for the construction of new buildingsd infrastructure costs are expenst
prepare development land for future developmeniviictthat is not specifically related to a singbeiilding. Excluding recurring capii
expenditures for leasing costs and tenant improwsnand for normal building improvements, our expéduture capital expenditures
started and/or committed new development projeerevapproximately $260 million at August 1, 2007significant portion of these futt
expenditures are currently subject to binding amttral arrangements.

Our longterm liquidity needs also include the funding ofelepment projects, selective asset acquisitiomisthe retirement of mortga
debt, amounts outstanding under our revolving triadility and longterm unsecured debt. Our goal is to maintain aewasive and flexibl
balance sheet. Accordingly, we expect to meet ongterm liquidity needs through a combination of (b tissuance by the Operal
Partnership of additional unsecured debt securitiy the issuance of additional equity securitiys the Company and the Opera
Partnership, (3) borrowings under other securedtcoction loans that we may enter into, as wel(4sthe sources described above
respect to our short-term liquidity. We expect s& such sources to meet our Idagn liquidity requirements either through direayments ¢
repayments of borrowings under our revolving créattlity. As mentioned above, we do not intenddserve funds to retire existing secure
unsecured indebtedness upon maturity. Instead, iWsegk to refinance such debt at maturity orreeiuch debt through the issuance of el
or debt securities or from proceeds from salesopgrties. In the future, we may from time to tiraéire some or all of our remaining
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outstanding Preferred Stock through redemptionsnoparket repurchases, privately negotiated adourisior otherwise.

We anticipate that our available cash and cashvatgits and cash flows from operating activitiekhwash available from borrowin
and other sources, will be adequate to meet outatamd liquidity needs in both the short and laegn. However, if these sources of funds
insufficient or unavailable, our ability to pay dlends to stockholders and satisfy other cash patsweay be adversely affected.

Stockholder Dividends

To maintain our qualification as a REIT, we mustdbute to stockholders at least 90% of our REXable income, excluding cap
gains. REIT taxable income, the calculation of vahis determined by the federal tax laws, does mptaknet income under GAAP. \
generally expect to use our cash flow from opegaéiotivities for dividends to stockholders and ayment of recurring capital expenditu
Future dividends will be made at the discretioroof Board of Directors. The following factors widffect our cash flows and, accordin
influence decisions of the Board of Directors reljag dividends:

o debt service requirements after taking into accdeht covenants and the repayment and restructafiogrtain indebtedness;
e scheduled increases in base rents of existingde

e changes in rents attributable to renewal of exgskimses or replacement leas

e changes in occupancy rates at existing propertideaecution of leases for newly acquired or dgwedioproperties

e Operating expenses and capital replacement neexisding tenant improvements and leasing costs; and

e sales of properties and non-core land.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have several off balance sheet joint ventureqratantee arrangements. The joint ventures weneefb with unrelated investors
generate additional capital to fund property adtjaiss, repay outstanding debt or fund other sgiateitiatives and to lessen the risks typic
associated with owning 100.0% of a property. When areate a joint venture with a strategic partmer,usually contribute one or mi
properties that we own to a newly formed entityimich we retain an equal or minority interest. keclegange for an equal or minority interes
the joint venture, we generally receive cash frbm partner and frequently retain the managemenptiecrelating to the properties in the ji
venture. For financial reporting purposes, certasgets we sold have been accounted for as financiaggements. See Notes 1, 2 and 3 t
Consolidated Financial Statements.

As of June 30, 2007, our unconsolidated joint vexgthad $765.6 million of total assets and $592l6om of total liabilities as reflecte
in their financial statements. At June 30, 2007, weighted average equity interest based on the &sets of these unconsolidated
ventures was 39.6%. During the six months ended 3002007, these unconsolidated joint venturaseela$31.9 million of total net income
which our share, after appropriate purchase acowyrdnd other adjustments, was $11.7 million. Fddittonal information about o
unconsolidated joint venture activity, see Note 2hie Consolidated Financial Statements.

As of June 30, 2007, our unconsolidated joint vezgthad $563.2 million of outstanding mortgage dAbtof this joint venture debt
non+ecourse to us except (1) in the case of customeargptions pertaining to such matters as misugenafs, environmental conditions ¢
material misrepresentations and (2) those guararged loans described in Note 11 to the Consolidateancial Statements. The follow
table sets forth the scheduled maturities of owpeprtionate share of the outstanding debt of ouronsolidated joint ventures as
June 30, 2007 ($ in thousands):
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Remainder of 200 $ 8,44¢

2008 4,70¢€
2009 8,312
2010 11,037
2011 6,081
Thereafter 197,09¢

For information regarding our off-balance sheetiagements as of December 31, 2006, see “Managesristussion and Analysis
Financial Condition and Results of Operations —BHfance Sheet Arrangements” in our 2006 AnnualoRegmn Form 10-K.

Financing Arrangements

For information regarding significant sales trarniges that were accounted for as financing arrareggsnat December 31, 2006,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations — Financing Rrafit-Sharing Arrangementsti oul
2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Interest Rate Hedging Activities

To meet, in part, our lontgrm liquidity requirements, we borrow funds atoenbination of fixed and variable rates. Borrowingsler ou
revolving credit facility bear interest at varialoltes. Our long-term debt, which consists of sed¢@nd unsecured lortigrm financings and tl
issuance of unsecured debt securities, typicalyrdterest at fixed rates although some loans ibearest at variable rates. Our interest
risk management objectives are to limit the imgddhterest rate changes on earnings and cash #mggo lower our overall borrowing co:
To achieve these objectives, from time to time,may enter into interest rate hedge contracts saatolars, swaps, caps and treasury
agreements in order to mitigate our interest riste with respect to various debt instruments. Wendbhold or issue these derivative contr
for trading or speculative purposes. The interagt pn all of our variable rate debt is adjustedre and three month intervals, subjec
settlements under interest rate hedge contractal¥éeenter into treasury lock agreements from tionime in order to limit our exposure to
increase in interest rates with respect to futeet dfferings. We currently have no outstandingriest rate hedge contracts.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

There were no changes to the critical accountidizips made by management in the six months ended 30, 2007, except as set fi
in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statementder “Impact of Newly Adopted and Issued AccountBtandardsand in Note 12. For
description of our critical accounting estimate= $Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finain€ondition and Results of Operations -
Critical Accounting Estimates” in our 2006 Annuaort on Form 10-K.

FUNDS FROM OPERATIONS

We believe that FFO and FFO per share are benldfictaanagement and investors and are importaitatats of the performance of ¢
equity REIT. Because FFO and FFO per share calookexclude such factors as depreciation and dzatidn of real estate assets and ¢
or losses from sales of operating real estateaésbich can vary among owners of identical assesgmilar conditions based on historical «
accounting and useful life estimates), they faatiditcomparisons of operating performance betweeodseand between other REITS. |
management believes that historical cost accouritingeal estate assets in accordance with GAARi@itlp assumes that the value of r
estate assets diminishes predictably over timeceSieal estate values have historically risen berfavith market conditions, many indus
investors and analysts have considered the pre&entsf operating results for real estate compatties use historical cost accounting tc
insufficient by itself. As a result, managementédgds that the use of FFO and FFO per share, tegetith the required GAAP
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presentations, provide a more complete understgrafiour performance relative to our competitord ammore informed and appropriate b
on which to make decisions involving operatingafining and investing activities.

FFO and FFO per share as disclosed by other REBysmat be comparable to our calculation of FFO BR® per share as descril
below. However, you should also be aware that FROFRFO per share are n@AAP financial measures and therefore do not represe
income or net income per share as defined by GA¥R.income and net income per share as defineddFGare the most relevant meast
in determining our operating performance becaus® BRd FFO per share include adjustments that iokeshay deem subjective, suct
adding back expenses such as depreciation andiaation. Furthermore, FFO per share does not dépécamount that accrues directly to
stockholdersbenefit. Accordingly, FFO and FFO per share shawder be considered as alternatives to net incamnetancome per share
indicators of our operating performance.

Our calculation of FFO, which we believe is coreigtwith the calculation of FFO as defined by treibhal Association of Real Est
Investment Trusts (“NAREIT”) and which approprigteixcludes the cost of capital improvements anatedl capitalized interest, is as follows:

e Netincome (loss) computed in accordance with GA
e Less dividends to holders of Preferred Stock aasl éxcess of Preferred Stock redemption cost @reying value
e Plus depreciation and amortization of assets ufyagignificant to the real estate indust

e Less gains, or plus losses, from sales of depriecerating properties (but excluding impairmergses) and excluding ite
that are classified as extraordinary items undeAB#

e Plus or minus adjustments for unconsolidated peshigs and joint ventures (to reflect funds fronexgtions on the same bas
and

e Plus or minus adjustments for depreciation and #ration and gains/(losses) on sales and minoriteréest related
discontinued operation

Further, in calculating FFO, we add back minoritferest in the income from the Operating Partnprsithich we believe is consist
with standard industry practice for REITs that @perthrough an UPREIT structure. We believe th# important to present FFO on an as-
converted basis since all of the Common Units matexd by the Company are redeemable on a onererbasis for shares of our Comr
Stock.

Other REITs may not define FFO in accordance whith ¢urrent NAREIT definition or may interpret tharent NAREIT definitiol
differently than we do.
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FFO and FFO per share for the three and six mattded June 30, 2007 and 2006 are summarized foltbwing table ($ in thousanc
except per share amounts):

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006
Per Per Per Per
Amount Share Amount Share Amount Share Amount Share
Funds from operations:
Net income $ 9,28¢ $ 6,27: $ 61,84 $ 20,41¢
Dividends to preferred stockholde (3,84¢) (4,119 (7,959 (8,837)
Excess of Preferred Stock redemption cost over
carrying value (1,449 — (1,449 (1,809
Net income available for common stockhold 4,00 $ 0.07 2,16( $ 0.0¢ 52,44t $ 0.9Z 9,77¢ $ 0.1¢
Add/(Deduct):
Depreciation and amortization of real
estate asse 29,42¢ 0.4¢ 27,36¢ 0.4t 57,93 0.94 53,66¢ 0.8¢
(Gains) on disposition of depreciable
properties (1,372)  (0.02) (1,082  (0.02) (2,280) (0.09 (2,352 (0.09

Minority interest from the Operating

Partnership in income from

operations 22¢ — 62 — 2,63¢ — 457 —
Unconsolidated affiliates

Depreciation and amortization of real

estate asse 2,87¢ 0.04 2,67¢ 0.0t 5,744 0.0¢ 5,35: 0.0¢
(Gains) on disposition of depreciable
properties — — — — (7,15¢) (0.12) — —

Discontinued operation
Depreciation and amortization of real

estate asse 51z 0.01 1,51¢ 0.0z 1,117 0.0z 3,132 0.0t
(Gains) on disposition of depreciable
properties (103 — (319 (0.0)) (19,84¢) (0.39) (2,2079) (0.09)

Minority interest from the Operating
Partnership in income from

discontinued operatior 49 — 14¢€ — 1,58: — A77 —
Funds from operations $ 3562(% 056$ 3253¢$ 05/$ 9217($ 1.4¢$ 68301 $ 1.1f
Weighted average shares outstanding) 61,56: 60,38’ 61,70¢ 60,47(

(1) Includes assumed conversion of all potentiallytdieiCommon Stock equivalen
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PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number Description
311 Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Saelk-Oxley Act
31.2 Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Saek-Oxley Act
32.1 Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Saek-Oxley Act
32.2 Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Saek-Oxley Act

48



SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causedréport to be signed on its behal
the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

HIGHWOODSPROPERTIESINC.

By: /sl EDWARD J.FRITSCH
Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer

By: /sI TERRY L. STEVENS
Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Date: March 2, 2008
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Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the amended Quarterly ReporHa@fhwoods Properties, Inc. (the “Company”) on FottQ for the period endt
June 30, 2007 as filed with the Securities and Brge Commission on the date hereof (the “Repott’Yerry L. Stevens, Senior Vi

President and Chief Financial Officer of the Comparertify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adbpiersuant to 8§ 906 of the Sarbaridey
Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeo& 1934; and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly grets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of
Company.

/sI TERRY L. STEVENS

Terry L. Stevens

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
March 2, 200¢




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the amended Quarterly ReporHa@fhwoods Properties, Inc. (the “Company”) on FottQ for the period endt
June 30, 2007 as filed with the Securities and BrRglke Commission on the date hereof (the “RepdrtBdward J. Fritsch, President and C
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuamii8 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to 90t Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeo& 1934; and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctiodiand results of operations of
Company.

/sl EDWARD J.FRITSCH

Edward J. Fritsch

President and Chief Executive Offic
March 2, 200¢







Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Terry L. Stevens, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this amended quarterly report amF(-Q of Highwoods Properties Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report dagscontain any untrue statement of a material faamit to state a material f:
necessary to make the statements made, in ligtiieotircumstances under which such statements mark, not misleading wi
respect to the period covered by this quarterlyprie

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,cther financial information included in this gtealy report, fairly present in i
material respects the financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows of the Registrantfaara for, the periods presentet
this quarterly report

Date: March 2, 2008

/sITERRY L. STEVENS
Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

* Paragraphs 4 and 5, omitted here, are includedcivibE 31.2 to the Quarterly Report on Form-Q filed by Highwoods Properties, |i
on August 9, 2007






Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Edward J. Fritsch, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this amended quarterly report amF(-Q of Highwoods Properties Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report dagscontain any untrue statement of a material faamit to state a material f:
necessary to make the statements made, in ligtiieotircumstances under which such statements mark, not misleading wi
respect to the period covered by this quarterlyprie

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,cther financial information included in this gtealy report, fairly present in i
material respects the financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows of the Registrantfaara for, the periods presentet
this quarterly report

Date: March 2, 2008

/sl EDWARD J.FRITSCH
Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Offic

* Paragraphs 4 and 5, omitted here, are includedivibE 31.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form-Q filed by Highwoods Properties, |i
on August 9, 2007






